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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®ME

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present to you the annual report for the year ended 31 March
2020 of AUX International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together to be referred to as the “"Group”).

BUSINESS & FINANCIAL REVIEW

The US-China trade dispute and COVID-19 outbreak has hit hard
on the global and Hong Kong's economy resulting in significant
decrease in number of tourists visiting Hong Kong and
decreased consumers’ tendency to spend in the past year. These
negative trends have put significant pressure on the Group's
lifestyle entertainment segment. Fortunately, the Group's
property management segment remained strong. Revenue
contribution from Ningbo AUX Property Management Service
Co., Ltd (“Ningbo AUX") recorded an increase of approximately
HK$53.9 million from HK$234.1 million to HK$288.0 million this
year. Benefiting from the double-digit revenue growth from
the Group’s property management segment, the Group's total
revenue recorded an increase of approximately 7.1% from
HK$317.6 million last year to HK$340.0 million this year.

The Group's property management services segment continues
its organic growth this year. The number of projects managed
by the Group had expanded from 50 projects to 64 projects
with an aggregate contracted GFA increasing from 5.92 million
square meters to 7.19 million square meters (“sgq.m.”).

The Group's performance this year has benefited from the
increase in revenue of HK$22.4 million and the gain on disposal
of a subsidiary of HK$5 million. However, due to the expansion
of the Group's property management business, the Group's
property cleaning expenses and staff costs have increased by
HK$15.5 million and HK$11.8 million respectively.

As a result, the Group has turned from last year's loss
before taxation of HK$2.7 million to profit before taxation of
HK$29.2million this year.

While the Group is still evaluating the suitability of introducing
new clubbing brands after Magnum club’s closure in 2019,
the Group acquired three restaurant and bar outlets across
Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui and Mong Kok under the belief
that these outlets can enhance the Group’s product portfolio
to its lifestyle entertainment segment.
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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®/RE

OUTLOOK

On 13 May 2020, Ningbo AUX was ranked 38th among the 2020
China’'s Top 100 Best Property Management Service Companies.
Ningbo AUX has also been awarded “Management Excellence in
Hospital Premises China 2020". These awards indicate that the
Group's top priority to achieve service excellence in its property
management segment is well recognised in the market. The
Group will continue to enhance its brand reputation in service
excellence.

While the unprecedented social and economic changes in the
past 12 months might continue, the Group believes that the
products and services offered by its lifestyle entertainment
segment cannot be easily replaced. To better prepare for the
future, however, the Group will continue to improve its service
quality and explore the possibility of monetising its new services
such as online DJ streaming.

Going forward, the Group will further consolidate its product
and services under the lifestyle entertainment segment by
leveraging on its established brand name and management
experience to create synergy and solidify its brand awareness
across different income and age groups.

When suitable opportunities arise, the Group will not preclude
the possibilities of pursuing suitable investment opportunities
in e-commerce, internet information technology and other
emerging industries in order to expand into different income
sources.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board, | would like to thank my fellow
directors, the management and all staff for their hard work and
contribution to the development of the Group in the past year.
| would also like to express appreciation to all shareholders and
business partners for their constant trust and support to the
Group.

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has
been principally engaged in the operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets in Hong Kong (the
"lifestyle entertainment segment”) and provision of property
management services in the PRC (the "property management
segment”).

Business review — lifestyle entertainment segment

The Group currently owns Zentral, a club in Central (the “Club”),
and three restaurant and bar outlets across Causeway Bay,
Tsim Sha Tsui and Mongkok under the brand of “Mini Club”.
On 30 April 2019, the Group acquired Mini Club at a total
consideration of HK$6.5 million.

Business review — property management segment

The Group positions itself as a complex property management
service provider and provides complete services to various
type of properties, including medium to high-end residential
properties and non-residential properties such as A-class office
buildings, commercial complexes, hospitals and industrial parks.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group managed 64 projects with
a total gross floor area of approximately 7.19 million square
meters.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$340.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 7.1% as compared with approximately HK$317.6
million for the year ended 31 March 2019. The increase in
revenue was mainly due to the increase in the number of
property management projects managed by the Group from 50
projects for the year ended 31 March 2019 to 64 projects for
the year ended 31 March 2020. For the year ended 31 March
2020, the property management segment recorded a revenue
of HK$288.0 million compared to HK$234.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

Staff Costs

The staff costs comprise salaries, wages, discretionary bonuses,
membership commissions, tips from customers allocated to
staff and other benefits including retirement benefit costs and
other allowances and benefits payable to permanent and part
time staff. The staff costs increased by approximately 8.2% or
HK$11.8 million to approximately HK$156.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020 from approximately HK$144.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2019. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in staff costs incurred from the property
management segment of HK$14.5 million due to increase in
scale of operation.

Property Rentals and Related Expenses

The property rentals and related expenses consist of lease
payments under operating leases for the Club and the Group's
headquarters. The property rentals and related expenses
decreased by approximately 65.4% or HK$17.8 million to
approximately HK$9.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2020
from approximately HK$27.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2019. Such decrease was mainly due to adoption of HKFRS 16
where right-of-use assets are capitalised for rental payments for
leased properties and depreciated over the lease terms.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses

The advertising and marketing expenses primarily consist
of advertising and promotional expenses, such as the cost
of inviting international disc jockeys (“DJ”) to the Club.
The advertising and marketing expenses decreased by
approximately 60.7% or HK$6.5 million to approximately HK$4.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2020 from approximately
HK$10.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. Such
decrease was mainly due to decrease in promotion activities
in the Club as the Group has temporarily scaled down its
marketing activities due to the market uncertainty in Hong
Kong.

Utilities expenses and repair and maintenance expenses
The utilities expenses and repair and maintenance expenses
increased by approximately HK$5.0 million or 20.5% for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in expenses incurred for the property management
business as a result of increase in scale of operation.

Other operating expenses

The other operating expenses remained stable at approximately
HK$33.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$36.1 million). Such expenses include
gardening costs, security costs and other miscellaneous
expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

Results for the Year

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$13.2 million, as compared with the Group's
loss of approximately HK$9.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2019. The turnaround from loss to profit for the year
was mainly due to the increase in revenue of HK$22.4 million and
gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$5.0 million. The revenue
growth in the property management segment and the gain on
disposal of Asiatic Century Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company recorded during the first half of
the financial year had been instrumental in bringing about the
improvement in the Group's profitability for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020.

LIQUIDITY,
GEARING

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$302.6 million (31 March
2019: approximately HK$298.9 million) and approximately
HK$177.8 million (31 March 2019: approximately HK$165.0
million) respectively, while the current ratio was about 1.7 times
(31 March 2019: 1.8 times).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group maintained cash at bank and
in hand of approximately HK$206.7 million (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$194.9 million). In the foreseeable future, the
Group expects to fund its capital expenditures, working capital
and other capital requirements from cash generated from its
operations and other financing means which the Company may
from time to time consider appropriate.

Total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31 March
2020 was approximately HK$131.3 million (31 March 2019:
HK$117.3 million), which was mainly represented by the loan of
RMB100,000,000 with a term of five years at an interest rate of
2% per annum granted by the controlling shareholder of the
Company to Starry Chance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for the purpose of financing its
acquisition of the entire equity interests in Ningbo AUX. The
gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total interest-
bearing borrowings by total equity, as at 31 March 2020 was
1.02 (31 March 2019: 0.90).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Chung Sun Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed
to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis,
a maximum of 60,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
"Subscription Shares”) under the general mandate granted
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on
19 August 2016 to not less than six placees who are professional,
institutional or other investors and who and whose ultimate
beneficial owners were third parties independent of and not
connected with the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) at a placing price of HK$0.91 per
Subscription Share (the “Placing”). The Directors considered
that it was in the interests of the Company to raise capital
from the equity market in order to enhance the capital base of
the Company. The market price of the shares of the Company
was HK$1.11 per share on 10 July 2017, being the date of the
placing agreement and the date on which the terms of the
Placing were fixed. All the conditions set out in the placing
agreement had been fulfilled subsequently and the Placing
was completed on 2 August 2017 in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement. The gross and net
proceeds raised from the Placing were approximately HK$54.6
million and HK$54.1 million respectively, which were intended
to be applied for supplementing the Group's working capital
and for financing potential investments or acquisitions should
suitable opportunities arise. The net price to the Company of
each Subscription Share was approximately HK$0.90. As at the
date of this report, all HK$54.1 million of the net proceeds raised
from the Placing had been used to supplement the Group's
working capital.

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through maintaining the equity and debt in a
balanced position.

As at 31 March 2020, the capital structure of the Group consists
of equity of approximately HK$128.4 million (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$130.2 million) and loan from the controlling
shareholder of approximately HK$109.2 million (31 March 2019:
HK$116.7 million). Except for the loan from the controlling
shareholder and lease liabilities, the Group had no interest-
bearing bank borrowings, debt securities or other capital
instruments as at 31 March 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURES AND SIGNIFICANT HELD

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
30 April 2019, Po Tai Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital in Mini Club for a total consideration of HK$6.5 million.
Mini Club and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
operation of three restaurants and bar outlets under the brand
of “Mini Club” in Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui and Mongkok
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
or joint ventures or significant investments held during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 March 2019: HK$0.6 million).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to conduct more in-depth reviews on the
suitable development strategies for the Group, including the
feasibility of diversifying the income stream of the Group by
exploring different business and investment opportunities in
different business areas such as trading, property management,
healthcare, internet information technology and other emerging
industries, which may or may not include any assets and/
or business acquisitions or disposals by the Group, and will
consider all options. Any such plans will be subject to review
and approval by the Board and compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules where appropriate. The
costs of such acquisitions will be met with cash generated from
the operations of the Group and other financing means which
the Group may consider appropriate from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risks arise from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in RMB for the
entities with a functional currency in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group did not use any forward contracts to hedge its foreign
currency exposure during the year. The Group will from time
to time review and adjust its hedging and financial strategies
based on exchange rate movements in RMB and Hong Kong
dollars.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed approximately
1,304 employees (31 March 2019: 1,205 employees). The Group
offers competitive remuneration packages to its staff, including
share option scheme, mandatory provident fund scheme and
discretionary bonus.

PROSPECTS

The Group expects that it will take some time for the overall
economic condition in Hong Kong to recover from the negative
impact of the COVID-19 outbreak. The Group is aware that the
Group's lifestyle entertainment segment might be susceptible to
the economic downturn, and has developed business strategies
such as organising livestreaming of online DJ performance in
order to expand its online income source.

The Group is confident that its property management segment
will act as a safety net to the Group's performance. At the same
time, the Group continues to equip its lifestyle entertainment
segment against future economic turbulence. The Group will
continue to enhance its balanced earning portfolio, review
its business performance regularly, and identify favourable
investment opportunities.

Lifestyle entertainment segment

The Group's lifestyle entertainment segment has been severely
affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. However, the Group
believes that Zentral, as one of the landmark attractions in
Lan Kwai Fong, will benefit from the release of the greatly
compressed demand for entertainment as the impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak diminishes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

Property management segment

The Group's property management segment has achieved
double-digit growth in the past year. To continue its past
success, the Group will strive to maintain its service quality
and enhance its reputation as a reliable property management
service provider of hospital premises.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEZHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (REE), aged 46, is the chairman and
executive Director of the Company and has joined the Group
since February 2019. He holds a bachelor degree in economics
awarded by Zhejiang University of Finance & Economics (1)L 84
#KRE) and a master degree in business management awarded
by Zhejiang University (17 L XZ). Mr. Zhang is currently the vice
president of AUX Group Co. Ltd. (R = Hi &£ BB R 2 7)) ("AUX
Group”) and an executive director and the general manager of
Zhejiang AUX Startup Services Limited* (#/ TR e Hi 8l % AR5 A
fRZAR]). Mr. Zhang started his career in 1997 and had previously
worked at Ningbo Free Trade Zone Holding Company* (2 & {x
M@ ¥ER A7) and Ningbo Municipal Development and Reform
Commission* (B R MERMBEZ B ). Mr. Zheng had also
served in the Finance Bureau of the Administrative Committee
of Ningbo Free Trade Zone* (ERRMEEEZEGHMED).
Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in public administration and
corporate business management.

Mr. Zheng Jiang (ZF’T), aged 55, is the executive Director of
the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015. He
is currently a director and deputy chairman of AUX Group, a
China Top-500 enterprise with business operations in multiple
industries, primarily in air conditioner manufacturing, power
equipment, healthcare and finance. He had been a director
and the deputy chairman of Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric
Co., Ltd. (BEFE=ZEEBBEERRMHEMR2T]), a Chinese electrical
meter manufacturer listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601567) (“Ningbo Sanxing Medical”), since its
listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June 2011 until March
2014 when he vacated such offices by rotation. He has over 24
years of experience in corporate management. He is a brother
of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. He is also the sole legal and beneficial owner and
sole director of Ze Hong Limited, which legally and beneficially
owns 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, which
in turn is interested in 219,950,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 58.66% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the latest practicable date for the purpose
of ascertaining the information contained in this report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEEBCHE

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (BRi#E ), aged 42, is the executive Director,
chief executive officer and a joint company secretary of the
Company and has joined the Group since May 2015. He holds a
bachelor's degree in commerce from University of Canterbury,
New Zealand. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has
over 15 years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
He has been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Wah Ho Holdings Group Ltd (stock code: 9938) since December
2019 and Chen Lin Education Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1593) since November 2019. All the above are companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Shen Guoying (JEBI %), aged 49, is the executive Director
of the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015. She is
currently the CEO in healthcare of Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group
Co., Ltd, and a director of Ningbo Sanxing Medical. She holds a
bachelor’'s degree in accountancy awarded jointly by The Open
University of China (1R E#& T8 X2) and Beijing Technology
and Business University (37X T K&). She is a senior accountant
(B 2 :HAD) in the PRC. She has over 25 years of experience in
finance management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (EME]), aged 58, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director, vice
president and the company secretary of Huabao International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 336). Mr. Poon was awarded the
postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of London. He
holds a master’s degree in international accounting, bachelor’s
degree in laws and a bachelor's degree in business studies.
He is a fellow of CPA Australia Ltd., the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute, a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, and a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member of its
Technical Consultation Panel, Mainland China Focus Group and
Audit Committee. Mr. Poon has years of experience in finance,
compliance, and listed companies management. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Sunac China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1918), Yuanda China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2789), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1292), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (stock code:
1249), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 631), Greentown Service Group Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 2869), TUS International Limited (stock code: 872),
Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (stock code:
2362), Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196) and Yanzhou
Coal Mining Company Limited (stock code: 1171). During the three
years preceding the date of this report, Mr. Poon had served as
a non-executive director of Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1609). All the above are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEBCHE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (f#f/M#), aged 53, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director,
chief financial officer and the company secretary of Chen Lin
Education Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593). Mr.
Bau holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration in
Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 18 years
of experience in accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Bau was appointed on 22 June 2018 as an
independent non-executive director of FSM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1721). All of the above are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lou Aidong (ZEX), aged 54, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. She is currently a partner of Beijing
Kangda Law Firm (bt R M ERZEEA EHFT). She holds a
bachelor’'s degree in law from the Peking University (3t 3K
). Ms. Lou is a qualified attorney in the PRC and has over
28 years of experience in the legal profession. From May 2008
to April 2010, she was a member of Public Offering Review
Committee (E1TEZZEE) of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (P FESEBREELZE®) She serves as an
independent director of two companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, namely Guangdong Hongda Blasting Co., Ltd.
(ERARRNIBBERMHABERAF) (stock code: 002683) and Jiangsu
Nata Opto-electronic Material Co., Ltd. (L& R KX EM B 5
B BR A F)) (stock code: 300346).
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Corporate Governance Report
EEXERHSE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed to
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate
image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the
2020.

“Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic
decisions to the Group's activities and oversees its financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group's daily management and operations.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors possessed the appropriate professional accounting
which
The
Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the number
of independent non-executive Directors represents more

qualifications and financial management expertise,
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

than one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong
independent element in the Board, which effectively exercised
independent judgement.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Board comprised
the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Jiang

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

The brief biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 15 to 17.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” to this annual report,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Directors, a written confirmation of his or her
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has arranged
trainings for Directors in the form of seminars and provision
of training materials. All Directors have provided their training
records to the Company.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of

REBEEFRM E’Juaﬁ‘ EZHE_ZT_THF=

training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March A=+ —HIFFEEZHEINRE0OT :
2020 is as follows:
G00D00OIOOOIOIOOOOIHOOOIOIIOIIOHOIOOIOIIOIOIOIOHIOICOIOAOIOIIOOIIOIIIIOOIOIICIOVIOIOIIOOCOIOIOOCO0S

Attended semlnars

H:Ilﬁﬁﬂ: i E
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Jingguo o A% B 5 A4 v
Mr. Zheng Jiang g LA v
Mr. Chan Hon Ki BRZH St 4 N
Ms. Shen Guoying M e N
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok & BR B 5t A v
Mr. Bau Siu Fung f/NG %k E v
Ms. Lou Aidong EFRZ+ V

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held separately.
The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Zhang Jingguo and Chief
Executive Officer was held by Mr. Chan Hon Ki (appointed
with effect from 21 September 2019) and Mr. Wong Hei Yan
(resigned with effect from 21 September 2019). The Chairman
is responsible for the leadership and governance for the Board
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day
management of the Group's business.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The service contract of Mr. Zheng Jiang, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and
Ms. Shen Guoying, both with an initial term of three years with
effect from 15 May 2015. The service contract of Mr. Zhang
Jingguo with an initial term of three years is commencing
from 1 February 2019. These contracts shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated by him or her
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to him or her.
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Each of the current independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed to the Board for an initial term of three years
commencing from 15 May 2015 which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated either by him
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his appointment or any time
thereafter to him or her.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the Company’s Articles
of Association. The appointment of each of the Directors is
subject to his re-election at an annual general meeting upon
retirement. The Company’s Articles of Association provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Chan Hon Ki, Ms. Shen Guo Ying and Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting.
All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the same meeting.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times
a year.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions and he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the
Board meeting discussing the matter concerned.

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each of the
Directors at the Board and committee meetings of the Company

held during the year ended 31 March 2020:

Attendance to meetings
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Regular

Board

Name of Directors Meeting
EHEEE

Exng g3

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE/BTEERY
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Committee Committee  Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEE REZEE FMZEE RREE
L ] = VN

Executive Directors HOTES

Mr. Zhang Jingguo REFEL T A 4/4
Mr. Zheng Jiang B IkE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hon Ki BREELE 4/4
Ms. Shen Guoying LB L 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTEE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERRE L& 4/4
Mr. Bau Siu Fung LN S 4/4
Ms. Lou Aidong EFRLT 4/4

N/A i 1" (l il
N/ATER NATEA 171 il
NATER NATER NATER il
N/A i F 1711 NATER il
4/4 11 17 17
4/4 11 17 17
4/4 11 17 17
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GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2020 is scheduled to be held on 21 August 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All
the Board committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 January 2014 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. For the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, namely Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok and Ms. Lou Aidong, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control,
compliance and risk management systems of the Group; (ii)
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii) developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under
the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to the employees and Directors.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out as follows:

o Reviewed with the senior management and finance-
in-charge and/or the external auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
accuracy and fairness of the annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and interim financial report
for the six months ended 30 September 2019 respectively;

o Met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the year ended
31 March 2019 and the effectiveness of the audit process;

BRRAXE
ARBBE_T-_TF=-A=+—"BLEFEN

REBFAGHBAR-E-FF\A—1—8
817 -

EEZE®

EFRORTENEEY  FHEERRRES
FAE-FAESEAEREAAORARE

BITEBARE H%@l%#K@T&%Q
PRIt HIRRERN  EFZEQRBRARER
BITRE > YRR EER KLE RIS
ABVEXER  BRABAARRAE -

EREES
ERZBER_T-WF-A=ZBKIL" Iﬁ
BEXERTANEBELE BE

EE=-A=t—HLEFE" %ﬁ?ﬁgm_%
PREHEMK e/ NEEE(ZE)  BEBRELE
REERZL REARBIFNTES -

ERZEENTFERELE (AP BE) () RH
FEAEBEYHEREFRE  AIES - 8RR
ﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁmﬁi,ﬁ()Wﬂﬁ+
REMBTESSRERNEMBEREE: (i)
ﬂi&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%@&ﬁéﬁmﬁtmﬁ
AR EMNREERBRRER : RivHlE

FkETERANEEREFNTAT -
ERZEERNBE_T-_TF=-_A=1+—HLt
FREETHOIERZHINMT

s HRREERERMBIER HINEEK
Bl A% 5 75 52 18] P BR 40 1O & 5 IR A R AE B
NWEBEZT-NAF=A=1T—"HLFE
MEEHBBRRRBE_ZT-AFAA=
+ B LB A B EI IS R A R
AR

o SRIBEHE  RIEBHEBE—FT—

NF=ZA=t-"BULFENFEETLHE
KR AREFTBENERIE:

Annual Report 2020 % & 23



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

J Reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

J Conducted annual review of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019;

o Approved the internal audit plan for the year ended
31 March 2020 and internal audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2019;

o Reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved
the engagement of external auditors and recommended
to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors;

o Reviewed the financial reporting and compliance

procedures and the report from the management on the

Company'’s internal control systems and processes; and

° Noted the new requirements on the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under the Listing Rules
and highlighted the amendments under the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report of
the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Function

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report; and (ii) reviewed and monitored
the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 January 2014,
with specific written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination
Committee comprised a total of five members, being two
executive directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jingguo (Chairman)
and Ms. Shen Guoying, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Bau Siu Fung and
Ms. Lou Aidong. Accordingly, a majority of the members were
and continue to be independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee

include making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2020 is set
out as follows:

° Reviewed and discussed on the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements for the business of the
Group and that it is in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

. Make recommendation to the Board for the re-election of
existing directors.

The recommendations on director appointment and re-
election were made in accordance with the Company’s
policy for nomination of Directors and took into account
the diversity aspects (including, without limitation,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
expertise and experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) under the board diversity policy. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”
in this Corporate Governance Report. In particular, the
Nomination Committee had taken into consideration
the perspectives, skills and experience that Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok could bring to the Board as an independent
non-executive Director, including without limitation his
extensive experience in finance, compliance, and listed
companies management.

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok is holding directorships in more than
seven listed companies as at the Latest Practicable Date.
As an independent non-executive director of each of these
companies, he is not involved in the day-to-day operations
and management of the businesses of such companies.
Mr. Poon has annually disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices held in listed companies and
other significant commitments. As a professional, he is
competent in time management and has sound knowledge
and skills to effectively discharge his duties in those
positions. The Board considers that Mr. Poon is able to
devote sufficient time to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Remuneration Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jingguo
and Mr. Zheng Jiang, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairwoman), Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok and Mr. Bau Siu Fung. Accordingly, a majority of the
members were and continue to be independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior management.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out as
follows:

° Assessed performance of executive Directors;

J Reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the

Company; and
J Reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages (including discretionary bonus) of
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management by band for the
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Under
the policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard to the benefits
of diversity for the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
Directors.

EEFRE_ZT_THFE-_A=TRHLFEN
HEFBENGEE M BRKRMTT -

EEESNLEE

E=ECHIEFTE S LLERE - ARFAHA
THREEEGXRBEZTEHREAARRREL
ZHRERZ  REZBR BEEBEERHREA
E2ERARBANEBEARFEBTRERZ T
ERAEL  BREETERMR - Fi& XL
BekiEk  UWRHEESS  HELR - Rt
R BRI EH Fﬁﬁ%%ﬁf’ﬁﬂjﬁﬁﬁc &
REBAMESRA - ZEAEREHIZEEER
THRIEIREEFEZ T 28 °

RAREAH EFEHLREFEAK -

Number of Directors EE &R

5 -
4 .
3 .
2 -
’I -
0
Male Female ED INED Below 43 43-50 51-60
5 k°8 HITES BUFITES 43m AT 43mES508E 5152605k
Gender 1 5l Designation B Age Group £ ##% 48 7l

Annual Report 2020 & #§ 27



Corporate Governance Report
LEERERE

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services provided to the Group were
approximately HK$2,580,000 and HK$26,000, respectively.
The amount for non-audit services comprised mainly the tax
compliance services for the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN RESPECT OF

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2020. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 84 to 1.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual review of both design and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In
this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material
issues to the Board.
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During the Year, the Group appointed BT Corporate Governance
Limited (formerly known as Corporate Governance Professionals
Limited) ("BTCG") to:

J assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCG to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations of BTCG as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal control
mechanism includes information flow and reporting processes,
confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures, and staff
training arrangements, etc.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are
maintained, management is responsible for designing and
implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds of
risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
Our risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit
Committee, which oversees risk management and internal audit
functions.
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OUR RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by BTCG. The Group maintains a risk register
to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The
risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and
management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’'s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The
risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they
can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of
the Group's risk management framework will be evaluated at
least annually, and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet
its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit function.

30 AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 BF B BR 2 A R A &

R B BEE 42

AEERMBZEHRICEELRRE BZEE
EEEETEEERERES  BERVBRER
l%ﬁ@%ﬂ REEBEERIIBTERESD

ETETHEIAREZ AEERIEARE
£ﬁ%£ﬁ$§l%ﬁﬂﬁ%1xﬂh°ﬂﬁ
BfiAEFE BERZBEShEEEBRME
TERREBN YR ERREBERR
PRERERETTE) - BREER IR BEHEZ LA B
HERHARENEEYEE L BFETHME -
REELCHbEEEBFERERERANETE
EREFGEERESSFERBINTRR R L
EBRBAF R (WE M) o U & 12 FF A AR A
SEXHEREMEERNERR  FTERKRES
ARERRERELMEMEBEREBRNEEEFE

RILA R ZER R - AR S A REUE KR #E
78 °
AEENEBRERREHERERBELET K

SEERERERNKBAEEDBFTIARTE
VRITEHERBSANEFAREITETIFE
E°aﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂA“E%E%%%M
EIRF R — R - DA R B B R A 5
BiE—2 -

AR SEBESFERINEBLIEEALTHA
SEAMEERERERERGETRS IF
HERE-—FPINARNEBNAIMEELERE
R

MEGAREELBMAIEZBPT - EFE2 AR
HEZAFLFE  BERRUREEEBZ
ME HEREBEMS  ZAIINEBIEEA
i%$EI£ﬁW$%VI¢XﬁEEI$E’
FEARAME - AT EFKE =L EE
BE—RRNBEZIFINFE -



Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint company secretaries of the Group are Ms. Tsang Kwok
Shan Sandy and Mr. Chan Hon Ki. Each of Ms. Tsang and Mr.
Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2020.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which
took effect from January 2014. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
will take into account the Company’s future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors which
the Directors deem relevant such as the prevailing market
conditions and global economic situation.

The dividend payout ratio would be calculated based on certain
per cent of the net profit recorded during the financial year, with
a view to retaining sufficient funds and capital for operational
uses and future investment opportunities and ensuring that all
possible acquisitions could be properly financed. The dividend
policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restriction under
the laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company shall be
held each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board.
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Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
("EGM")

Pursuant to the Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary at the headquarters of the Company in
Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 1, 10/F., Emperor
Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for
the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and signed by the requisitionist(s). The request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request has been verified
not in order, the Shareholders will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
for the attention of the company secretary at the Company'’s
headquarters in Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders
at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
"Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
DOCUMENTS

IN CONSTITUTIONAL

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.

32 AUX International Holdings Limited / % 5 8 BB 2 R A R 2 7

BRREMBRRIFIIAGE(RREIIAE])

RIBMAEAME  RERSIASAE—R2XE
AARREREB(RR]) EXRMABH @ MZERRE
REXFHFERAEREINVRERERRRERS
FRENARAEGBRAN T D 2— c ZEBEE
KEANEEMESS A AR EEEBNAF
WEFL (ARt BH B ET EEFEFE
2885 R EEE P LOEIE)  WHIRH EkE
B NEREEeRERZERMEENE
MEBRFIBRABRREFINARE - EXEHAR

ARNBBNRNDBFERIRKRE  EFSH
RENBFELREREXBRERZER

RBEEBRKAMBELHRREL T BA -
NAFBRRFR ARG - R - W& ERPZE
BALE  RAIRREGESHZER  MERE
FIAEREMTEREXRAH - HEFSRNZ
HEXRFHFRAIBAREAFAZANE - BlIED
ERERAANRF)ARERTAAAKRE - MA
AABARARBEREENRELERERESS
AEEBRASMELANMARERX -

BRRHESEREENR
BRRAMARBERIEEEN  EHHALQE
REBEBRMO AR WE -

BRRRBRRASRERBNERF

BRERABRRFINAGIRERERFAETAR
Foalk  HEREREFHN EXRREHRK

REHARG]—B& -

ERNHNEREE

HE-—T-TE=A=+—HILEE FATMN
ERXHLEERNE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION

AUX International Holdings Limited ("AUX") and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) are committed to providing high-quality services,
and to maintain its pioneering position of both the private
club entertainment business in Hong Kong as well as property
management business in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") as the Group’s vision and mission. The Group is
committed to be a responsible corporate institution. While
making great effort to achieve its corporate goals, the Group
also hopes to seek benefits for the society in order to achieve
sustainable development of all aspects.

In view of this, this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report will focus on the balance between three aspects:
corporate needs, social needs and environmental concerns. The
Group understands that including the elements of sustainable
development into corporate strategies has now become a trend.
We will communicate with different stakeholders actively in
order to understand the needs of all parties, and to manage
the ESG issue in a comprehensive way. The Group will consider
relevant short-term and long-term factors while implementing
the plan of sustainable development, which includes the
challenges we are facing, responsibilities to stakeholders, global
trends, regulations and risk management, etc. We believe that
in today’s constantly changing business environment, a company
must take its responsibility on to ESG issues in the long run in
order to succeed.

Through careful and in-depth understandings on the risks and
opportunities of ESG issues the Group is facing, the Group will
actively fulfil its corporate social responsibilities, abiding local
laws, providing suitable working environment for the employees,
and would also pay attention to social issues including
responsible procurement, avoiding drug abuse, environmental
protection, volunteer activities, etc. We will also contribute to
environmental protection starting from waste reduction. As a
part of the society, the Group will strive to contribute to the
society and work together to create a better environment in the
community.

Lastly, regarding the Group’s policy and performance on the
four major categories of environmental protection, employment
and labour practices, operation practices and community
participation from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, the Board of
Directors are pleased to present the 2019/2020 ESG report of
the Group.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This report introduces the Group’s significant ESG performance
in the 2019/2020 fiscal year, and its long-term commitments
to ESG. This Report mainly focuses on the Group's two main
businesses, including the operation of clubbing business and
restaurant and bar outlets in Hong Kong and the provision of
property management services in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), and describes the progress of the Group in creating
sustainable values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

REPORTING RANGE AND BOUNDARY

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
This Report summarises the ESG practices of the two operation
units, namely AUX and Ningbo AUX Property Management
Service Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX"). The information contained
herein is helpful to know about and evaluate the Group's ESG
performance in routine business in Hong Kong and the PRC.

In addition to internal factors, such as the corporate
value, strategy and core competence, the Group has also
communicated with the internal and external stakeholders on
a regular basis, and considered the ESG strategies of other
industries, so as to achieve sustainable development. The Group
has identified the following categories that have or maybe have
a significant impact on the Group's ESG performance:

o Clubbing and entertainment industry in Hong Kong;

o Property service industry in the PRC;

o Property management market in the PRC;

° Present or future environment and society;

o Financial performance or operation of the Group; and

o Evaluation, decision and action of the Group's

stakeholders.
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In preparing this report, the Group has adopted some global
and local industry standards or best practices, including the
ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange and the applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards of Hong Kong.

The Group has covered the critical issues concerned by different
stakeholder groups through continuous communication with the
stakeholders. We welcome opinions and suggestions for ESG
performance of the Group, which can be sent to the Group's
Email: info@auxint.com.

BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

AUX (Stock Code: 2080) and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged
in clubbing and entertainment businesses in Hong Kong and
property management services in the PRC. For the lifestyle
entertainment segment of the Group, it owns and operates one
club and three restaurants and bar outlets in Hong Kong, namely
Zentral and Mini Club with a total area of 20 thousand sq. ft.,
providing services including private parties, corporate events,
live entertainment, fashion shows, jewelry fair, filming location
and film premiere. For the Group’s property management
business in the PRC, the headquarter is located in Ningbo,
offering property management services in 14 cities, namely,
Shanghai, Ningbo, Tianjin, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Nanchang,
Changsha, Jiujiang, Jinhua, Chengdu, Huzhou, Qingdao,
Fenghua and Maanshan', that providing specialised property
management services for commercial areas, residential areas,
villas, office buildings, industrial areas and other premises.
The property management segment provides comprehensive
services for various property types, with main focus on
residential properties and covering non-residential properties
such as Class A office buildings, shopping malls, medium and
high-end residential buildings, hospitals and industrial parks.

VISION

To be a leader in clubbing and entertainment business, steadily
carry out property management businesses, maintain high
quality services, so as to develop AUX into a world brand and
provide the maximum sustainable value for stakeholders.

" As the management of residential estates in Huzhou, Maanshan and
Fenghua are provided to the management of property sales office, and no
"Environmental” data in relation to the Group have been generated, the
"Environmental” section of this Report will not cover relevant districts.
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MISSION

Enhance customer experience to attract more club patrons,
create and lead the intelligent life, and cultivate excellent
talents.

GOAL

Dedicated to improving the quality of clubbing and
entertainment services as well as property management
services.

THE BOARD

As at the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
the information contained in this Report, the Board comprises
the following Directors:

Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jingguo  Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
(Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Jiang
Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Ms. Shen Guoying

Mr. Bau Siu Fung
Ms. Lou Aidong
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PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively seeks every opportunity to understand our
stakeholders, and guarantees the regular improvement of our
services. We firmly believe that our stakeholders play a vital role
in maintaining the success of our business.

FOENS AR

AEEEBSK-—UTREAMBOHENKS -
EREMANRG S THSE - ZFIRE - &
PRRFHEEESRMAEBORD T EERES
BEZMER -

Stakeholders Issues Concerned

K0E & E

Communications & Feedbacks

BENEOS

HKEx Compliance with the listing rules, and timely &
accurate announcement

ERRG BHRETHRA - REEERNOQS

Government Compliance with laws and regulations,
prevention against tax evasion, and social
welfare

B EREEROEST DAL B

Suppliers Payment schedule and demand stability

HER REEER  FREE

Investors Corporate governance system, business
strategy and performance, and investment
return

REHE REERRR XBKREBAUBEN  REDR

Media and Corporate governance, environmental

Public protection, and human rights

BEEAR NAEER  RERE AR

Customers Service quality, reasonable price, service values,
employee protection and working safety

BE REEE BRaE REEE EIREN
Th=ZE

Employees Interests and welfare, employee remuneration,

training and development, working hours,
working environment

BT BEMEN  BTHM  JIIEBRE -
TYER 8 THRIRIE

Community Community environment, employment and
community development, social welfare

HE HERY REMERERE HREF

Meeting, training, website update and
announcement

SF Wil WUEHRMRSE

Government inspection, tax declaration and
other information

BERE  MHERMEMER

Business communication, purchase agreement,
e-mail and telephone connection

¥BER RBaLY TFBHLEEBE

Organising and participating in seminars,
shareholders’ meeting, issuing financial
reports and other announcements

AEM2EfTe  RRAS  EHUBRER
Hih &

Publishing newsletters on the corporate website
FERB UL - EmEE
Field investigation, after-sales services

RIgER  ERIRG

Training, interview with employees, internal
memos, employee’s suggestion box

Bl BTImak AEEEE BITESMS

Community development activities, volunteering
activities of employees, community welfare
subsidy and donation

HEFHREIES - BT & LEBMLEEF HELA

B
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ENVIRONMENTAL

For the Group, we understand that a healthy environment is
the basis for economic development and social well-being. As
a responsible organisation, the Group will pursue environmental
protection, comply with the existing laws and regulations,
handle and dispose of all materials to avoid adverse impact on
health or environment.

During the fiscal year of 2019/2020, the Group did not find any
crucial illegal behaviour relating to environmental problems.

Emissions

The Group is devoted to environmental conservation, and has
implemented eco-friendly measures in all of its operation units
so as to reduce carbon emissions generated during operations.

Air Pollution Emissions

In view of the Group's business focusing on entertainment
services and property management services, our business
activities do not involve any air pollution emission arising from
the use of gas fuel or automobile fuel.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions are a leading cause of global
warming, which leads to sharp climate changes and poses
a tremendous threat to the global ecosystem. The Group
understands although we have no direct greenhouse gas
emission, yet it is inevitable to generate indirect greenhouse
gas such as CO, during energy and water resources utilisation.
In view of this, the Group, as an organisation with corporate
social responsibility, considers the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions as the top issue we concern about.

The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group mainly come from
energy consumption for business activities in various cities,
including energy use, electricity consumed for treatment of
drinking water and sewage, as well as greenhouse gas emissions
indirectly generated from the employees taking planes for
business trips. In addition, we are committed to promoting
greening in the residential estates to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions generated from our business activities.
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The Group's club in Hong Kong holds the valid sewage
treatment licenses, and its sewage discharge has been
complying with the discharge limits specified in the licenses. As
for the residential estates under our management in the PRC,
and the sewage discharge mainly comes from the everyday life
of property owners. We discharge wastes in a way stipulated by
the municipal government, and maintain the pipelines, valves
and other equipments related for the sewage discharge and
exhaust systems on a regular basis to guarantee its normal
operation.

The total greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group
in the fiscal year of 2019/2020 were approximately 64,159
tonnes, of which mainly were generated by Ningbo AUX. The
greenhouse gas emissions generated by Ningbo AUX were
about double that of the previous fiscal year. The increase in
emissions was mainly attributable to the business development
of Ningbo AUX, the rising number of residential estates under
its management and the rising of room occupancy of such
residential estates. In view of the intensity of greenhouse
gas emissions, the Group will calculate the greenhouse gas
emissions of each residential estate, as shown in the table
below. In this fiscal year, the intensity of greenhouse gas
emissions of Ningbo AUX increased by approximately double
as compared to last year. In view of this, Ningbo AUX has
implemented all kinds of solutions in the energy efficiency
program to reduce the generation of greenhouse gases,
including planting to promote greening in residential estates
and posting up labels to remind the employees of saving
electricity and water, and equipping residential estates with LED
lightings.
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As shown below, approximately 98% of greenhouse gas & F&RFT/R @ #E8BE IR B v AT AT E £ /R
generated by Ningbo AUX is indirect emissions from energy ZEREALERFEANEEER HAERRERT
use. Although relevant energy use by Ningbo AUX is mainly HiiEEMEEREAETERAEFRFERAE I
attributable to use by property owners, which is beyond the FEEEF R HTATREIE SIS E R - Z)F B i
control by Ningbo AUX, it continues to enhance the publicity in N E&REEE/ILAINBREEHHORE R AHK
residential estates for economical use of electricity and water, HEFEWMLEBFLHIRBOTE -

with the hope of minimising the environmental impact of its

businesses.
Total emission (tonne)
Scope Source of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) Bk & ()
L] R SR B8 B B ROR (82K B e ) 2018/19 2019/20
—E-N/—h Z=TB-h =%
Scope 2 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased 33,616.03 62,725.64
electricity?
gE2 BESINEREERZ RN
Scope 3 Electricity consumption for drinking water and sewage 806.37 1,188.38
treatment®
#FE3 BRIBRIK R FKEMEFRENE 2
Employees taking planes for business trips 21.02 22.45
B ERARMINE A
Data of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) 2018/19 2019/20
BERBERBE (BRRE=H) “E-N/—h Z=TB-h =%

Greenhouse gas emissions (tonne) 34,443.42 63,936.47
B 2 B8 HE (W)
Greenhouse gas emissions per residential estate under our management 956.76 1,704.97

(tonne/residential estate)*
BEEEFERAMNBEERESERME EEE28)

2 Due to data collection limitation, the power supply discharge coefficient in 2 HREERORS - EPEAMAOEEH R REHUR A

mainland China was set at 0.71 kg/kWh, which is consistent with data in the 07MF %=/ FTRE & F—HRE HERERBREHIE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the previous year. — B

* Due to data collection limitation, the per unit electricity consumption for 3 BHRKEERBRS - TR EAME RKEE RI5KE
drinking water and sewage treatment in mainland China was set at 0.6 and BEEUAEEEHRRR06K0.28328FRK - MHABRA
0.28328 kWh respectively, while the preset discharge coefficient for purchased WHBEBNEXRFMERBRAB08TR/ FTRE - &
electricity in mainland China was set at 0.8 kg/kWh, which are consistent with F—0RE HEREAREHE - -

data in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the previous year.

IS

* The average number of residential estates under our management was 36 ZE-N/NUBREEFHER ) EHE A3 —F—
in the financial year of 2018/2019, while it was 37.5 in the financial year of N/ —ZHHEETFHEENRHE B35 -
2019/2020.
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AUX generated approximately 222 tonnes of greenhouse
gases in the financial year of 2019/2020, and approximately 129
tonnes in the financial year of 2018/2019. AUX's greenhouse gas
emission data in the financial years of 2018/2019 and 2019/2020
are as follows:

AUX'’s greenhouse gas emission in 2018/2019
RRfi=2-N\/—-LhERERBHNK

1%

Total emissions

R

129.40
tonnesli§

BRHR TN/ T _THHFEMEL

H’J;‘m:*aﬂ,ﬁﬁzzzmﬁ MBRHR =T\
nﬁﬁﬁﬁziﬁﬁfm’*iﬁ’hmxﬁﬁa“’]%w?
“ﬁﬁﬁﬁé_i N/ E-NFER_Z

ﬂ/_g_gifﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁiéﬁ%%ﬁkﬁ&%{ﬁﬁu?:

AUX's greenhouse gas emission in 2019/2020%¢
BRufi=8-—h /=

SERERBHN
1%

Total emissions

R

222.47
tonnes/

[ Scope 2 Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect energy [ Scope 2 Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect energy
HE—  EREEAEREEN HE=  EREEAERELN
Scope 3 Electricity consumption for drinking water and Scope 3 Electricity consumption for drinking water and
#E= sewage treatment #WE=  sewage treatment
BIER/KKESKEMEENE N BRIR R K K5 KB i HFEH) E )
Scope 3 Employees taking planes for business trips Scope 3 Employees taking planes for business trips
#HE= (REERLRELINE HE= ([EERLREEINE
As shown above, AUX's greenhouse gas emissions in HBMEEAR BRfi—T—H —T-_THEF
2019/2020 rose by approximately 72% as compared with the REHREL F—HHEE X 'I]rﬂ J: ﬂ' #972% -
previous financial year, which is, in the opinion of the Group’'s SBEZEEEHEEEREERAT KT E WK

management, attributable to the acquisition of three restaurants
and bar outlets during this financial year with Mini Club being
included in the disclosure area for the Group. Looking ahead,
since energy use is the main source of AUX's greenhouse gas
emissions, it will strengthen energy conservation monitoring
measures to ensure that all electrical appliances are properly
turned off when not in use and that all lights and air conditioners
are turned off outside office hours to reduce unnecessary
electricity consumption.

5 According to the Sustainability Report 2019 of HK Electric, its carbon emissions
in 2019 are 0.81 kg CO,e/kWh, while the carbon emissions of CLP Power are
0.5 kg CO,e/kWh according to its Sustainability Report 2019.

¢ With regard to fresh water treatment, according to the report 2018/2019 of the
Water Supplies Department, its per unit electricity consumption is 0.606 kWh/m?.
With regard to sewage treatment, as shown on the website of the Drainage Services
Department, its per unit electricity consumption in 2018/2019 is 0.28 kWh/m?.
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Wastes Management

in the lifestyle
entertainment segment and property management segment of
the Group.

No major hazardous waste was found

Despite the failure to calculate the amount of non-hazardous
waste generated by AUX for the clubbing and entertainment
business of AUX due to data collection limitation, AUX
is committed to reducing waste generation to an extent
controllable and encouraging employees to classify and recycle
waste. AUX hopes to promote waste reduction at the source,
starting from reducing the use and packaging to decrease
waste generation. In addition, for the waste cooking oils of the
restaurants and bar outlets, AUX engages the qualified waste
collectors to collect those waste cooking oils that generated
from their operating activities for recycling on a regular basis.

Ningbo AUX has entrusted the local qualified wastes
transportation agency to transport and dispose of the non-
hazardous wastes produced by the property owners, and
enabled the recycling of wastes. All wastes have been disposed
of in compliance with local laws and regulations. Recycled
materials concentration points have been set in the service areas
to carry out collection, classified management and declaration
of the statutory hazardous wastes and recyclable wastes.

As for the domestic garbage discarded
every day by users in the residential
areas, Ningbo AUX has set up waste
recycling bins to collect recyclable
wastes, and arranges special staff to
classify and store the recycled wastes
separately every day, and deliver the
recycled wastes regularly to the waste
transfer station or the solid waste
recycling treatment plant.

However, as it is difficult to collect data about the intensity
and quantity of wastes, the Group failed to report the weight
of relevant wastes. Although relevant wastes of Ningbo AUX
are mainly generated by the property owners, which is beyond
the controllable range of Ningbo AUX, Ningbo AUX will still
strengthen the waste classification, recovery and disposal
process, and attempt to reduce the impact of its business on
the environment.
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Use of Resources

The Group undertakes to become a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise and makes our contributions to
environmental protection. To reduce carbon emissions, we've
taken the initiatives to perform the energy-saving measures in
our business activities.

Electric Energy Consumption

The major carbon footprints of Ningbo AUX come from electric
energy consumption. To coordinate the development of the
property management business and the residential estates
under our management, and the rising of room occupancy of
such residential estates, the electric energy consumption of
Ningbo AUX in the fiscal year of 2019/2020 was about double
that of last year, as shown in the figures below:

Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Years 2018/2019)
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In consideration of the energy use intensity, i.e., the energy
consumption per residential estates under our management,
the energy use intensity of Ningbo AUX in the fiscal years of
2019/2020 was 2,355,893 kWh’ per residential estate, about
doubled compared with the same period last year. Although
the energy used in the residential estates are mainly consumed
by property owners, yet Ningbo AUX will still be devoted to
propaganda of electricity saving within the residential estates.
Besides, Ningbo AUX equipped the residential estates with LED
lightings for realising the objective of energy saving and further
reducing energy consumption.

The electricity consumption of AUX in the financial year of
2019/2020 was 337,590 kWh, which is more than double of that
for the previous financial year. The management of the Group
believes that, the increase is attributable to the acquisition
of three restaurants and bar outlets during this financial year
with Mini Club being included in the disclosure area for the
Group. The management remains committed to enhancing
environmental awareness of our employees and placing more
electricity saving labels, to further reduce the use of energy.

Water Resource Consumption

As drinking water is a very precious resource on the Earth,
saving water is one of the important goals of the Group. The
Group also makes efforts to reduce electricity consumption
generated from water supply, thereby reducing the Group's
carbon footprints.

The water resource consumption of Ningbo AUX in the financial
year of 2019/2020 was approximately 1,681,808 tonnes, with the
water consumption intensity of 44,848 tonnes/residential estate.
Like energy use, water consumption in residential estates was
totally attributable to use by property owners. Although Ningbo
AUX does not directly reduce the water resource consumption,
it will actively promote water conservation in residential estates
and encourage the recycling of water resources, such as the use
of used but relatively clean water for cleaning and the use of
electrical appliances and household products which help reduce
water consumption.

7 The average number of residential estates under our management was 36
in the financial year of 2018/2019, while it was 37.5 in the financial year of
2019/2020.
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Energy Use by Ningbo AUX
(Financial year of 2018/2019)
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Water resource consumption data (Ningbo AUX)

KE R FEBIE (2K R =)

OOOVOOOOOOVOIOICOOOOOOOOOIOOOVOIOOOOOOOOOOIOIOOOVOO

Water resource consumption (tonne/m?3)

KERHFEME 3 HK)

Water resource consumption per residential estate
under our management (tonne/residential estate)®

BEEEEEEENKERERM EEER)®

The water consumption of AUX in the financial year of 2019/2020
was approximately 2,378 tonnes, while it was approximately 142
in the financial year of 2018/2019. The management believes
that, the increase is attributable to the acquisition of three
restaurants and bar outlets during this financial year with Mini
Club being included in the disclosure area for the Group. The
management remains committed to raising our employees’
awareness on water conservation initiatives in order to reduce
the impact of our business on the environment.

8 The average number of residential estates under our management was 36
in the financial year of 2018/2019, while it was 37.5 in the financial year of
2019/2020.
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Packaging Materials

In view of the Group's business focusing on entertainment
services and property management services, our business
activities do not involve any packaging materials used for
finished products.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

Currently, the Group mainly uses the energy of electric energy
and water resources. In the face of the increasingly severe
environmental pollution, the Group, as a part of the community,
is committed to implementing energy saving measures in
different levels of routine operations, including:

We encourage employees to

turn off the unnecessary power

Saving electricity (e.g.: floor or corridor lights)
VIERE

BMEBEITIETIVENEIR
(40 : 128 E BB ) Bl 7=

We encourage employees to
save water consumption
while using the washroom or
conducting cleaning work

Conserving water

BERK

BMEBETE®RRLEFHERE
EITBERBRIER  BHERAKE
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The Environment and Natural Resources RERRXAER
Residential Estate Greening BRIEHE

Ningbo AUX of the Group delicately develops gardens and AEEMEFRGZHBRAIZESCEREY M
greening space in the residential estates for each project by virtue IBE®EERBIEBEB ML E=FHBOLEE - 10
of professional greening management, such as planting diverse HEZEIENLEEH K HSHEMRE 2
flowers, grasses and trees, which improves the microclimate in BN EMNEMNSE  AHLEEFTRRKEAE
the community, enriches the landscaping in the community, and #1Z & MHHER - AMEENEP —EEEE
enables the property owners to experience the biodiversity of the 28 M E W BN A& EER] -

nature. One of the residential estates has ever been honoured

as the "most beautiful courtyard” by the government.
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group is aware of the fact that our business success
depends on the cooperation and cohesion of our teams. Our
teams are the most precious assets of the Group. Therefore,
based on the people-oriented core values, we are committed
to providing attractive remunerations, benefits and welfares for
employees, arrange reasonable working hours and holidays,
and ensure all employees enjoy equal opportunity. The Group
also holds internal activities on a regular basis and encourage
the employees’ participation to increase the Group's cohesion,
strengthen the employees’ recognition of the Group, and
reinforce their sense of belonging.

Employment

Our Employees

As at 31 March 2020, AUX and Ningbo AUX have recruited 1,304
employees in total, including 1,232 employees of Ningbo AUX
and 72 employees of AUX.

Number of Employees by Region
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Number of Employees by Age
BERAMNBSZET A
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We deeply believe that a diversified, embraced and harmonious
family can help us to have a better understanding about the
demands of different customers. Up to 18% of the employees
have served the Group for more than four years, which further
proves that the Group’s people-oriented concept has been
passed on to every employee via practical experience.

Employee Benefits and Assessment

The Group deeply acknowledges that the Group's development
and success indeed rely on the efforts and pains of all
employees, so the Group provides competitive salaries to pay
back the employees’ efforts. In addition to providing attractive
remunerations and benefits to employees, the Group not only
offers performance bonuses according to the Group's business
results and the employees’ performance, but also distributes
holiday benefits on traditional festivals every year. The Group
also provides the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (MPF) for
employees in accordance with the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, and pays endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund for employees
in accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China.

Number of Employees by Seniority
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In order to reward hard-working employees more effectively,
the Group has established a well-organised performance
management system to efficiently motivate their sustainable
development, help employees make planning for their career,
realise talent inheritance, and enable the Group to develop
toward the sustainable operation goal. The Group implements
monthly, quarterly and yearly performance assessment to help
employees establish definite, measurable, achievable, position-
related and time-sensitive key performance indicators of their
own, supervise their progress on a regular basis, and take
appropriate improvement measures if applicable. The Group will
adjust the remuneration for employees regularly by referring to
their assessment results and comprehensive evaluation and by
combining the Group's overall business performance, so as to
ensure employees gain the best remunerations in proportion to
their efforts.

A Harmonious Working Environment

The Group is devoted to creating a harmonious and embraced
working environment for employees, and protect them from any
harassment or discrimination. The Group treats fairly and equally
the people regardless of their gender, sexual orientation,
disability, age, nationality or ethnic origin, family status or
other personal characteristics that are protected by law. Even
as for our systems for recruitment, remunerations and benefits,
holidays, trainings, assessment, promotion, etc., we evaluate the
employees according to their abilities, skills, qualifications and
performances.

Work and Life Balance

In order to ensure our employees achieve balance between work
and life, and maintain a balanced and healthy lifestyle, our actual
working time is eight to ten hours a day and five to six days a
week, so that our employees can have sufficient time to rest.
Our employees can enjoy annual leave of five to fifteen days as
well as other statutory labour holidays according to their position
level. In addition, employees also enjoy funeral leave, marital
leave, maternity leave, etc. As for Ningbo AUX, an employee
with a new-born baby under one year of age can further enjoy
thirty-minute breastfeeding leave twice a day.

Moreover, Ningbo AUX provides a series of facilities for
employees, including dining hall and dormitory, so as to improve
their sense of belonging to the Group, help those employees who
come to work far away from home to achieve the balance between
work and life more easily, and alleviate their economic burdens.

AUX also organises employee activities on a regular basis to
enable employees to relax and enhance their sense of belonging
to the Group.
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Communication Channels for Employees

The Group attaches importance to the opinions of employees,
so all employees and the management are encouraged to
use our diversified communication channels, such as: e-mail,
forum or bulletin board, to realise horizontal or vertical
communications. Generally when an employee has any
complaint against his/her work, we'll arrange the department
supervisor to have an interview with him/her, while the employee
can also complain against the person or department concerned.
If the person or department being complained against fails to
provide satisfactory solutions, the complaint will be submitted
to the superior department level by level, so as to ensure the
employees can receive a clear feedback.

The Company encourages employees to raise reasonable
suggestions about the Group. The HR Department is
responsible for collecting suggestions of employees and
guaranteeing their accurate delivery.

Talent Retention

The Group cherishes talents, and the above-mentioned HR
management measures have successfully contributed to the
employee retention rate of about 95% for the Group.
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Health and Safety

Health and safety of the employees are of vital importance to
the Group. The Group is committed to providing a safe working
environment for employees, and guarantees to fully comply with
all occupational health and safety regulations. The Group has
increased information and rules about occupational health and
workplace safety in the employee handbook, and has formulated
policies about the safe working environment, such as Special
Measures against Typhoon and Rainstorm, defining working
procedures and evacuation issues in severe weather. Apart from
this, the Group will invite fire protection equipment suppliers to
give lectures about fire safety awareness on a regular basis and
provide fire drills for employees to ensure that they are familiar
with the necessary procedures if a fire breaks out.

Any employee suffering from work-related injuries is entitled
to corresponding compensation benefits in accordance with
relevant national regulations. In the case of Hong Kong
employees, the Group will report the case to the Labour
Department in accordance with Article 15 of the Employees’
Compensation (Amendment) Ordinance, and contact the
insurance company for settlement of claims. In the meantime,
the Group will also provide sufficient work-related injury leave
to allow the employee sufficient rest.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to participate in all kinds of
in-service training, and also provides employees with various
internal and external training and development opportunities to
help them maximise their business potentials.

The annual assessment results will be used to provide
suitable trainings for employees, in an effort to continuously
improve the Group's talent quality and working skills, motivate
working enthusiasm of employees and stimulate them to face
challenges. Apart from considering the Group’s business vision
and target needs, the training and development program
also simultaneously evaluates employee performance and
functional gap, coordinates with Group and the management in
establishing the education and training framework, and makes
plans for internal and external courses such as new employee
training, professional training, training of various management
levels, training relating to environmental protection, core values
of the Group, etc. through physical or electronic learning
methods, providing employees with all-round training, and
enables the Group’s employees to continue improving their
professional and managerial competence, find out the platforms
where they can show their abilities, grow together with the
Group, and establish a steady cooperative relationship.
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The Group arranges new employees to receive on-boarding
training, aiming to make the employees know about the Group,
master the codes of practice, techniques and methods for
handling business, and adapt to the new environment and new
job quickly. In addition, the Group also provides training on
safety knowledge and environmental protection knowledge for
employees, which helps establish their awareness of safety and
environmental protection. Apart from the training on technical
procedures, employees can also participate on fire training so
as to enhance their awareness of fire prevention.

The percentage of employees trained in Ningbo AUX is 83%.
In the fiscal year of 2019/2020, Ningbo AUX has provided
approximately 5,621 hours of trainings for employees, with an
average of 5 training hours received by each trained employee.

The percentage of employees trained in AUX is 64%. In the fiscal
year of 2019/2020, AUX has provided approximately 80 hours
of trainings for employees, with an average of 2 training hours
received by each trained employee.

Labour Standards

The Group has established an employment and welfare policy
in compliance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the labour laws of the PRC, and strictly prohibited the
recruitment of any candidate under the age of 18 to avoid
any child labour. The Group will never recruit any child labour
under the age restricted by local laws, and the Group’s HR
Department will require the job candidates provide valid
identification certificates to confirm their actual age at time of
interview. Once any misuse of child labour is found, the Group
will immediately suspend his/her work, send the child labour
back to his/her original residence, and deliver to his/her parent
or legal guardian, for which the Group will bear the required
transportation and accommodation expenses, and pay the
salary due for his/her actual work.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to procurement
principles. In the procurement of materials and services, the
Group has established procurement policies and procedures
to promote fair and open competition. We ensure that we are
able to meet the best economic benefits in terms of price,
quality, delivery period and service when purchasing materials
and hiring services. As a responsible organisation, the Group
abides by the spirit of contract and complies with the principles,
objectives and contents of the contract signed between us and
the suppliers.

AEERHAABEIRI ARSI 5EE
BETHBRASE YZEEEXHOHTH &
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FERBAHEEXEIEENA DL B83% -
BRARAR-_Z—N/E_TWHFE
BRE L5 21/NENEINFET S FHEM
I8 T HER M5B -

MERHEERZIFIEBENAD L R64% - B
RN N/ ZE_TUHRFE BRR#
HA8NEBEITFEL FHELXIET
AEZH2NEHE -

ETEER

REBFUNEFBREBMEE  —HMEBES
CIEMBEDD) R AEBIBB)EG - 3B ESE A
AWt NA\BHERE  UBHILEETHRE - K
SERTHEFRENEMEZHABRFINETL
REBANERBAEAKSERBRERMHE
MEGDBRAXMUEREERFHR - — B3
RRAEL AEERBLAEEZELINIE
THEZETXRRBEEHINEXGRE LT
EREANER ERBNRBERAYHHEALEH
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The Group has the responsibility to ensure that procurement
of materials and services is conducted in a highly professional
manner and complies with the established code of ethics, so
that the resources are used properly, and the suppliers will have
the confidence in continuing doing business with the Group.
We must ensure that the suppliers understand and comply with
the Code of Conduct and the procurement policies formulated
by the Group. The Group has established a list of selected
suppliers. Before any supplier is approved to enter this name
list, we will review their company backgrounds (including the
recognitions, qualifications and licenses they have obtained),
product pricing and supply terms. In order to standardise
relevant systems and processes, the Group has formulated
relevant work guidelines and standardised contract forms, and
conduct comprehensive evaluation on the products and services
of suppliers on a regular basis to guarantee their compliance
with the Group's strict standards.

The list of selected suppliers will be reviewed at the end of each
year. Such review involves the evaluation on whether a supplier’s
pricing, product and service quality, efficiency, reliability,
the ability to deliver goods on schedule, license update and
technical capability are still in compliance with the Group's
requirements and standards.

The Group selects reputable and reliable suppliers to provide
high-quality, affordable and sustainable products and services.
The Group has a transparent and independent procurement
process, with an aim to promoting competitiveness. This move
will also serve the benefits for our shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Group expects to establish a vertically
integrated supply chain management system by integrating the
procurement resources and developing the supplier selection
and management mechanism, thereby actively providing
comprehensive solutions and satisfying customer needs.

Meanwhile, the Group encourages suppliers to promote
corporate social responsibility activities and abide by corporate
social responsibility rules. All business transactions shall
maintain high-standard ethics; bribery or other illegitimate
benefits must not be provided or accepted; information relating
to business activities, structure, financial status and performance
shall be disclosed on a regular basis in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.
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Product Liability

Customers are the cornerstone for the Group to achieve
sustainable development and a source of power to promote
product innovation. The Group strictly requires that our
products and services must conform to public interests, and

handle inquires and opinions of customers in a timely manner.

Ningbo AUX

Ningbo AUX adopts the whole process customer service
concept in project positioning, planning and management of its
property management business in the mainland China, covers
the customer satisfaction indicator of related operation units in
all regions into the scope of performance evaluation on these

EmEE
BEPFRASEERAUFBELERNRE  ERE
OB IR - AEEBRBEREFRHENE
mlRBHFEARNE T RFKREREEFPNE
ARER -

2K B AT
BERRmHINTEANMNNEERERBETH
HAEML - RE - EENZBEEPRBER
ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁﬁ@giﬁumgﬁﬁughﬁ
IANBZEEEMMBEREREE  EEPF
A FETEHICERS -

operation units, and constantly improves our services from the
interest of customers.

Management
according to law

The Group conducts lawful management and operation in accordance with the requirements
in government laws, regulations and policies, so as to ensure our property safety and value
increase. By virtue of normative approaches and with the goal of pursuing satisfaction of
property owners, the Group provides efficient and superior services for the property owners,
and satisfies their requirements honestly without fraud.

krEE REBHAEARE AR BRER KEAEE AALE BERAKEVELZZ2ERE £
BRENTFER UEXFPREREBINER REFPRHGHR EENRYE  BREFPEN.

b 2 4 B
WIEEE -

Superior services The Group develops business earnestly, makes unremitting pursuits and improves the
details to strive for perfection. The Group also makes full use of the internal and external
information about quality environment, occupational health and safety, and customer
feedback, constantly improves the quality, environmental and occupational health and safety
management system, keeps such systems always in effect, and pursues endlessly a higher

level of management and performance

BER% EEBLEZATET  TRER  TEAEH  HIRFEEFX ROVNBANENEERE B
ERFELZEEEMEEORE %K&LEE~%?&%¥@§§%%E%§ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ

BEM THERKERNEBMNESEXR

Infinite innovation The Group will focus on infinite innovation, and uphold the spirit of infinite innovation from
business levels to management approaches. Employees of the Group shall have the spirit
of loving and respecting their jobs and being ready for innovation, and attempt to achieve
the synchronous development of both individual and corporate values.

2 R 2 H7 AEBERENEENEN UEXEBEOLEEETFR HEAGERAFOBEY  AEEE
T2EEEME ZRNAFNEY EREAEEECENRSER -

Sustainable
development

Standardised management is crucial to the Group's development. To achieve development,
the Group must attach importance to standardised management, establish and improve
its quality, environmental and occupational health and safety systems, establish effective
inspection and implementation mechanism, and guarantee the Group’s steady and
sustainable development.

REETEEEBRERENER SE2ERVEIEEENHRAE
E RREMBRXERZE2HE BEYAUNBREMEEES

FEBE B gZUuNTESENE

BROEREMFEER -
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The Customer Service Department of Ningbo AUX is
responsible for caring about customers initiatively, handling
and managing customer complaints, systematising and refining
customer relationship management, standardising the complaint
handling work, and enabling all the complaints made by
property owners to be solved timely and reasonably.

In order to standardise and regulate the customer services of
operation units in various regions, the Group has formulated
normative documents such as Property Owner's Complaints
Handling Flow Sheet, Standard Operating Procedures for
Property Owner’s Complaints Handling, etc. to constantly
improve its customer relationship management level.

Complaint reception

RFER

Receiving a complaint

BERR
v

BERRmIINEFRGHEEIIAETS
RIEXFPERAMEETIF  HHEPARERET
ERGCEBAL  WRBRFRIEIE - 5
REFPHZBERFELE SEMEINFER -

RIEEHEEEENNTPRE TEREL
LR REHEL(EPRFRIERIEE)
KR P IREFREIREEXRR) S 6 E X
SERTEZFHEREEAKTF -

Keeping records of the complaint

R FR R 8%
v v v
Minor complaint Important complaint Major complaint
BRF BEERK BEARF
Making a commitment Making commitment Reporting to General Manager
188 HH 7R R 188 HH 7R R LHBgE
Reporting to Director Reporting to Manager Holding an office meeting
LTHREE tHEE BRBRLEE
Director of Customer Service General Manager organises General Manager organises
Department organises for resolution for resolution for resolution

EFBRBHECL R A B R
\ \

mEEARER
|

l

Keeping archives and paying return visits

BWLETED
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Upon receipt of the complaint from a property owner, the property butler will firstly show
sympathy for what the property owner is suffering from on behalf of the department being
complained, and keep detailed records in the Logs of Customer Service Department
immediately. In case of a minor complaint, it may be submitted to the department being
complained in the form of Work Contact Sheet.

EERIEFRFR  DEEREARRERFABFARNEFNEERTRIE - L7 BAESE
PRSP M08k - 5B SR F AT ACTERE 8 8) 69 7 308X B IR R

Complaint =[PY o
channels
RFRE
Complaint channels for property owners include:
XPRFARBERE:
e Reception desk switchboard e QQ group of property owners
B8 i Al & 48 X P QQE
e Customer service receptionist e Official micro-blog and WeChat account
ERATS B 77 O R IRE 55

Ningbo AUX employs students from high schools as temporary staff to conduct sampling
survey on satisfaction of the property owners about our products and services, and collect
customer opinions and suggestions about the daily services of Ningbo AUX, in an attempt
to constantly improve the Group's customer service level and property management
quality. Moreover, Ningbo AUX listens to the voices of customers, actively collects

Satisfaction customer opinions, rapidly responds to customer needs, and devotes itself to continuously
survey improving the customer service via channels such as hotline, written suggestion, property

e g s 0 . .

MEERAE owners' forum, social media, etc.

ERRRHNSTEREFEEEER T HEPETERMRENEENHMEAZ
VHERRRHOEERGETEFELAEZZNEE  UTHRASENEP R K
FEHMEEERE - I BRRRHEABARER EOESE XPWE XK
BERB BEREPLE  BRBRUETFPER AZRDEEFFE  BAIRKENER
FRBTIE -
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AUX L

AUX is committed to providing the best customer service RAEHBMIABRREESZETEPREER K
experience, safeguarding relevant intellectual property rights FEJ/ERFE BEHFAEBE A FHERE - (REBEIL
of the software used in clubs, protecting customer privacy, B  BREMANELZERFIEESE - RBof2
guaranteeing the security in clubs, and preventing drug abuse. A HEEGH EREBE THBREDT

AUX has formulated relevant systems to regulate relevant

operations of employees as follows:

AUX is committed to providing customers with an efficient complaint handling mechanism
and taking the following approaches to achieve this goal:

RIS nBEERE - EERMEORFEEKS AR TINTEZNERNLBEEF:

o All employees deal with customer complaints in an objective and positive manner;
FEEINEEBENEENEERETEFNKRF:
I ° Actively cciiwtact ggstorﬂe(s to foll(?w up or resolve complaints in a real-time manner;
Al THHRFFREBRANSRARSE: | |
15 iR B J Investigate the cause of the complaint in a real-time manner and provide remedial
measures;
BNEF A B IR AFIRE - I 12 L A8 R /O 7 R HE Bt
o Record the details of all complaints and record the contact information of the
complainant in daily log for investigation and follow-up; and
B MRFAEG  WHRFANBELHESARSPUHBASTMRE : &
J Periodically review the progress of unresolved cases.
THmERBREREE -
AUX has formulated intellectual property policies and procedures to manage, protect and
monitor the copyright usage:
Re R ANBERREREFANEE RELERRENER:
o Prohibit the use of unauthorised software or the reproduction of any object of
intellectual property rights;
ZIEFERARERENRHERTAANBRERNY M
Safeguarding o Before using a third party material, ensure that a license has been granted,;
intellectual EEAE=ZAMER  BREETFHA:
property rights o Educate and remind all employees to comply with copyright laws via email or
HENBERE intranet;
RAETFHEMHIANBBRAELIREREE TETRIES:
o Retain lawyers to verify copyright owners, buy public performance licenses and deal
with other copyright problems; and
HESE R AN A% B AR A A - 8 B X B 18 Bh AR 0 BE 3 B i B A T 0 I
o Establish the List of Licensed Songs according to the public performance licenses
already bought.
BEBEEBE ARBERERRI(EEFAZHE) -
AUX has established a membership system to provide more convenience and benefits for
Protecting membership customers. All membership data are kept and encrypted by the membership

customer brivac database manager to avoid unauthorised access to the sensitive data of the members.
raEaE LANHEMEBRERAHE AMATEANERRAESNEFHAEE MAD
’ A@E@@Z%ﬂi’ﬂEEI@E,“@%{%%E\EE??M%} CHBERRZBEAEREHANBERAT2HE
BHNERERERN -
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Safety in the club
BREFZ2

Prevention
against drug
abuse

B L B B2

AUX is committed to providing customers with a safe and orderly environment within the
club, to ensure that customers have a wonderful time there:

RefiZNABEEREMARK - BAZ2ERFNERE  BABEREAABERER:

Professional security personnel are hired to maintain the order within the club;
SINEERRRERSAANKF:

Ensure all the hired security personnel hold valid security certificates and pass the
drug test;

BRARMAXBHNRZEFERRNRLEE N BBEERAH

Closed-circuit television operates in the form of 24/7 (24 hours a day, 7 days a week),
and in the event of an accident, we will view relevant records for follow-up;

B BR AR bA24/7 (— R24/NBy - —IA7TR) PN EME - 3 4 BN °] #1 5 A8 B °C 8% A
1EER #

Strictly control the flow of club patrons;

BRARES S MEE AN

Check the identification certificate of any customer suspicious of being under 18;
and

mEERAW T/ \RALOSOHBRXM &

If we find any customer under 18 or uncooperative, the employees shall ask that
customer to leave the club. If necessary, we will inform the police for assistance.
EERERNDT \REEXAHEBEETSENBLAT BREEREXEHERRMAS
Fr-MBERE XSBHESHY -

AUX has established rules to prevent drug abuse:
B T2 AT B bR e R Al -

All the new employees must pass the drug test before recruited;
PREMABRZEIVNERBERART BEER

The Group carries out conventional drug test every month in the clubs, and choose
random employees to receive sample test;

RefiBARSMETEREYRS  LEEKETEABETEANH

Any employee who is suspected of taking any prohibited drugs can be directly
reported to his/her department supervisor;

MERERMETRAEMEY  ATEZRREPIETERS

Our security personnel will request any person suspicious of dealing or taking any
prohibited drugs to leave the club;

MEBREMARSGKBRAEINEY  RLEABSUNERZASBR

If any specific evidence is found to prove any person dealing or taking any prohibited
drugs, the club manager will call the police immediately; and
MERAREREEZARIUARBENEY  SHAEESVANRERE R

AUX will arrange Caritas Lok Heep Club to provide lectures with respect to drugs,
mental health and other healthy lifestyle to employees.
RofiTHRRELERSREENS R LEREMEMRREENEETE
To
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Anti-Corruption

The Group prohibits any act of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The good moral integrity and anti-
corruption mechanism ensures the Group's acts in all work be
professional, honest and fair.

The Group strictly abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, and requires all employees sign the Employee Anti-
Corruption Commitment Letter, making the commitments as
follows: while engaged in business practices, an employee must
not directly or indirectly provide, undertake, require or accept
any illegitimate benefits, or carry out other dishonest acts in
breach of good faith, law or national regulations, including
criminal offences including corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering, and other acts such as providing
illegal political contributions, improper charitable donations
or sponsorships, providing or accepting unreasonable gifts,
entertainments or other illegitimate benefits, infringing business
secrets, trademark rights, patent rights, copyrights and other
intellectual property rights, engaged in unfair competition, etc.
The Group requires that employees must report any benefits
received, for which the Group will make the final decision on
disposal.

During the fiscal year of 2019/2020, neither the Group nor its
employees were prosecuted for corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering.

Whistle-Blowing Channel and Policy

The complaint whistleblower shall truthfully report the situation
to the Administration Center. Upon receipt of the whistleblowing
matter, the Administration Center will investigate the complaint.
The Administration Center will keep the whistleblower’s
personal information confidential, and will submit the case to
the competent external agency for disposal when necessary.
The whistleblower will undertake corresponding legal liability for
fabricating facts, falsifying evidence, or conducting false charge
or frame-up by whistleblowing.
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Community Investment

The Group insists on the philosophy of giving back to the
society. Apart from the continual and robust operation of
business development, the Group will make active efforts to
show the service spirit of our core corporate values, integrate
the ideas of community concern and participation, and continue
devoting to all kinds of education, cultural and social welfare
activities.

Volunteer Services

The Group is committed to performing its corporate civic
responsibility, of which volunteer service is an important part.
In view of this, the Group has particularly set up a volunteer
team, to cooperate with the Agency for Volunteer Service in
charity work and return to the society. During the financial
year of 2019/2020, the Group arranged volunteers to provide
gratuitous treatment to residents. At different festivals, the
Group also gives carnations to mothers and books to children,
and offer laba congee, moon cakes and congee with mungbean
to improve neighborly and community relations. During the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group donated medical supplies to
the Hong Kong Medical Association and Agency for Volunteer
Service, as part of the contribution to fighting epidemic.

In the coming year, the Group will input more resources in
various education, cultural and social welfare activities, actively
participate in community activities, and express the Group's
concern of and return to local society.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during the fiscal year
of 2019/2020.

HERE
AEERFEELENER  RIEERREL
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE B - He2kEsfEikEmiNsE
REPORTING GUIDE AND REFERENCE

A. Environmental Reference in the Report
A BE rH{ESE
A1. Emissions Page#
Al BEERY HE#
The policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a 38-41

significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

ERBRMAEREBHEN RAKRLHWHES BEREESEREYVNELSTH
BENEBTHETABERZENBBAERZLRD -

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. N/A
KPI AT1BE DR ) 1E 18 I 48 B BE 3R T8 A
KPI' A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per 38-40

unit of production volume, per facility).
KPI A1.2a = REBAHRE B E) REE(WNSEEEN - BERBHHE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per unit N/A
of production volume, per facility). i A
KPI AMI3MIEARERRZMAE QWA BEIRFTE(NWASEEEN - BHERIE

HE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per 40-41

unit of production volume, per facility).

KPI AMAFELBERZMAE QWA B RFE(NWASEEEN - BERE
HE) .

A

KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 38-40

KPI A SHE MUK BE 2R ATERE -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 40-41
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A6 BRIBEEENEZEREEZEMN L BREELEENEHREAEHRE -
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A2. Use of Resources Page#
A2. EiRER HE#
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw 42-44
materials.

BERERERBIERIR KR EAMRM ) OBEK -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas 42
or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

KPI A2 VR BB D ER R SHEER(NE RIom BRECATETR
RB)RERE(WUASESEN - BARETH) -

KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production 43-44
volume, per facility).
KPI A228 FEKEBREE(MNBEEEM  BAREE) -

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 42, 44
KPI A2 3 it BE IR fF A3 s st S R RIS AR »

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit 43-44
for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A2.4% 50 SR ERE B /KOR LRI A E A B - A K 4R 7+ R 7K R & 5t 8 e PR A5 X

% o
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if N/A (44)
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. N 3E A

KPI A58 mATABRMBNEE UEABE) R(NER) BEEBMIEE -

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources Page#
A3. RER RRER H8#
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and 38-45

natural resources.

WMEERTAHRERRAERERERFZENKRE -

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 38-45
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI ANl X R BHIRB N AAERNEAZELRERKNERAETEN

178 -
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B. Social

B. &

B1. Employment
B1. &%

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERAFMERE BEREA ITHERH RE TEEE 2t REKRNU
REMGFERBEANNRRERETHETARERZENHEBEERROINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.

KPIB1U#Z MR - EEEE  FRAESNKMEZONEE LR -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
KPI B1.232 1Rl - FicARI R REIDHNEEREALL X -

B2. Health and Safety
B2. REHZZ®

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FHRHZETIEREMREREEMRBELCENRERETHETARE
AREEBNHBERERROIONEHR -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
KPIB2IE TEBEMIF T A KL EK o

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
KPI B22R TIHBARTIERE »

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how
they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B23f Al AR MM B R B RE R 21606 - W RMBEBRITRERE -
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B3. Development and Training

B3. & KIE I

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

FRRAEBEBTIEBRENMB LR E - HRHIES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle management).

KPI B3z R R EEE A (R REEE FRAEEEBZF) E0NXIEEED L

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

KPI B3.2i R M EEEHIE D - BREBTKIINNFIEE -

B4. Labour Standards
B4. & T %8|

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
ERHLEETHREISTHRRMETHRITABERZENMEEARLRD
o & #

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

KPI B4 1t s BB HI M FE M AR R E T KRBT -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

KPI B4 2t e IR E R B R HBR B BB A RERE LB -

B5. Supply Chain Management
BS. L EEE R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

EEHERNRELEERBRBR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
KPI BS. 1z it (@ &1 70 H R B 88 ©

KPI' B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

KPI B5.2# it AREIE ML MBS >  MEARTHEREMNNHEREE  ARF
BEMNNATRERTTE -
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B6. Product Responsibility
B6. EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
FHMRHEERNBRENRERELZE BES RELRMBEEUARBRITEN
BEREBTHETABERZENHBEZRNBROINER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

KPIBLIEEREEXEMmBHFTRLHEREAMELKNE DT -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

KPI B6.2& BN E m M R FEB AR EH 5L -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
KPI B6.3# il B 4 i I (R R A0 3 = A RE RO HE B

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
KPI Bo 4l EER T RBIEMNEMBBREF -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

KPI B6.5H i H B EER RERLBHE  URBEBERATRERS X -

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. RES

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

ERDHLERSE 9% BRFMIEREOBRRNETEERTAREAZENEH
EREBOHIHER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes
of the cases.

KPI BZIRERHAH B ITAXHEERBEI EEANE THARTOEE LF
AAEER o

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B7.2H LBy #iE e M BB - U RHEBATRER A -
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B8. Community Investment Page#
B8. #tERE BEH#
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities 56

where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

ERAUHR2ER TREEMTHETENRREER EDEZRTENEN

B o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e. g. education, environmental concerns, 56
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

KPIB8IE T ERER (HE REFHE BIHR BE Xt BF)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. N/A

KPIBS2HEBETHIEMBAER (NS R) - i A
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the financial year, which
includes a fair review of the Group's business, a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, an
analysis of the Group's financial key performance, particulars of
important events affecting the Group during the financial year
and after the end of the financial year, and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to
16 and the Group's environmental policies and performance can
be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 33 to 67 of this annual report. The contents of the
abovementioned sections form parts of the business review as
contained in this report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the
management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations which may have a material impact on the business
and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in all material
respects during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a
caring environment to employees and emphasised the personal
development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group aims to continually provide quality services
and consumption experiences to its customers and establish
cooperation strategy with its suppliers.
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Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporate environment that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact on
the environment by reducing its electricity consumption and
encouraging recycling of office supplies and other materials.
For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 33 to 67 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 92 to 195.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$13,213,000 (2019: Loss attributable to shareholders before
dividends: HK$9,635,000) have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$85,481,000 (2019:
HK$100,207,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
196 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 24(b)
to the financial statements, in which there were no movements
during the year.
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There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
represent less than 30% of the Group's total revenue.

The information in respect of the Group's purchases from the
major suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as
follows:

BE-T-FF-AS+—AILEE  ARTH
HEAKBATEEBE  HELEEARR
FmEE

BrBEEE
ARAIMHBERAANHEREAENEEH
BRABERZGX BURARRARLHIRER
ERRREZHETERND -

Bl TH B R

EXVTANERREFAARA
fa] A% TR B S

&5 S E

FTEEERHER
BE_ZZF=-A=t—RHILFE A£ED

KEE%Z?@HSMMH$%I?@H&@ »PA30% ©

TEHREERBE_ZT_TF-_A=1T—HL
FREAGBAEERBZEMDT:

Percentage of
the Group's
total purchases

AR KE

RBEEESL

The largest supplier A ER 63%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate R ER S 85%

During the year, other than Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd
(which accounted for approximately 9.7% of the total sales for
the year ended 31 March 2020) in which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
and Mr. Zheng Jiang indirectly hold 85.0% interests and 10.0%
interests respectively and Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital which
is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a 30%-controlled
company held by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang (which accounted
for approximately 3.6% of the total sales for the year ended
31 March 2020), none of the Directors, their close associates or
Shareholders who to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company
has any beneficial interest in any of the Group's 5 largest
suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Mr. Zheng Jiang

Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Ms. Shen Guoying

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation.

By virtue of Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Chan Hon Ki, Ms.
Shen Guoying and Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and will retire from office
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM"). All Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS'’
BIOGRAPHIES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 15 to 17
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO"), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executive were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein, or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules were
as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company

EERBEITRAERKR®D - HER®D
REREETFZEBERAR

R-F-ZFTF=—A=1T—HB ARAERHEEK
RRITHRABRARE R EEABABEE(EXE
REZLBEERN(TEZRBEER ) EXVED)
B HERDEREEETEREREESFR
HEGRPIEXVEBE7R87 #A MG ANA A N
Rz SRR (BRERIEE R BEGRDIZ
FHRXERKEFRAEERESTRABEA
ZHEmPORR)  RREFEF R E G352
RASAZGR Az ELCMZERRRE %X
RIE LR R FrE AR <7 R A A& AR A R ik
Rtz iEm RORAMT

REQXBDHEBZEZROREERG ZFR

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OO0 OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

Approximately
Percentage of

Name of Name of Capacity/ Number and the issued
associated Corporation Directors Nature of interest class of shares share capital
ERTREZ
HEEE AR BExpgg ELVg 331 RDEE R EHB BMOBEIH
Huiri Limited (Note 1) Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 0.1 10%
corporation ordinary shares
ERERARAR N Z1) g I REEEER LiEk
China Prosper Enterprise Holding  Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 1,000 10%
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) corporation ordinary shares
China Prosper Enterprise Holding £ T XEEEER il
Co., Ltd. (A1 7#1)
Note: W&t -
1. Ze Hong Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Jiang, was 1. BIAEL2BEANRREZERRAARONERA

interested in (i) 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, being the
holding company of the Company; and (i) 10% of the issued share capital
of China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd., being a fellow subsidiary of
Huiri Limited. Mr. Zheng Jiang was deemed to be interested in the shares
of Huiri Limited and China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. as held
by Ze Hong Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 352
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of
persons other than the chief executive of the Company who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FERRRRORBERG 2 EE R KX
B

RZZEZZTF=ZA=+—H BEARAREF
HFRHEIEPIE336KEGFE 2L MATRE - T
AT (KRB HREITEHABRINRAR AR
HDEBERGT  BEAREBEESFRPEKRD
FEXVEBE 2 K350 BB A& S 1A A2 B K B 22 B % 58
IS EKEWT

VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO COOOOOOOOOO OOV OO0

Capacity/
Name of shareholder

MR R & 5 EEME

Nature of Interest

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

(approximately)

Long position
in ordinary

shares held (Note 1)
2RITRAR

BEZER Bo (] 4)
ZHRE (K1)

DOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO

Zheng Jian Jiang (Note 2)
corporation

BWEIT (B iE2) EELEER

Ze Hui Limited (Note 2)
corporation

EEBERAR (M Z2) Ry rEEs

Beneficial owner

EDBEAA

Huiri Limited (Note 2)
fERZERERAT (M Z2)

He Yi Ju (Note 3) Interest of spouse

Interest in a controlled

Interest in a controlled

219,950,000 58.66%
219,950,000 58.66%
219,950,000 58.66%
219,950,000 58.66%
32,400,000 8.64%
21,600,000 5.76%

OOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OOOOOOO

A &5 (K7 7#3) Bic 48 2 &5

Xu Xingen Beneficial owner

RIEIR Em#AA

Chen Yongan Beneficial owner

BRIk &2 EnlEaA

Notes:

1. On the basis of 374,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March
2020.

By it

1. ERARAR_Z_TF=ZA=+—HBBEHT
374,984,0000% f& 1 °
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2. Huiri Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is owned as to 90% by Ze Hui Limited (which is in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang) and 10% by
Ze Hong Limited (which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zheng Jiang, a current executive Director). Each of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
and Ze Hui Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Huiri Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. He Yi Ju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. Under the SFO, Ms.
He Yi Ju was taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which

Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang was interested.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in the paragraph
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its controlling shareholders
or their subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with a Director or a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 March 2020 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
disclosed below, at no time during the year, the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements which would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this
report, none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe for the
shares or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or had
exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

For the year ended 31 March 2020 the Board is not aware of any
business or interests of the then Directors and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which
any such person had or might have with the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results and individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors, employees and other eligible persons.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 2(p) to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

EERBFRB2ES

BE_Z_TF=-"A=+-RHILFE g
TAMBEREZTRBRETAIBMEAZEM
575 ok N o Y AN B I S A K T 3 R BE A X
BE o ARSFATEAEEGFTEXAREFELZ
EREMAEFE -

i BOR

EEeRAKEREZRA  BER BEOIRT
1EMEE I E H R -

FHMZBE e EEHIELER EEHF M
EXEREBAGSELEEBE RENALRA
RIE °

ARFERMBBENE  (FREF EAR
Bt e A AL R -
iR K58

AEBRAREZHBHR P HREM T 2p)

NBERERE

REARFTERZ ARENRBARTES
% BEAFHREY ARREHEFLED
RATHZABRHRE -

B RR
ARREREEBIFATESRE LTRA

FIVBERBUMERLZFERR  UR/AE
BYBTEFTEBBLAL -

Annual Report 2020 & 3§ 75



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the IPO amounted to approximately
HK$105.6 million, among which approximately HK$103.7 million
had been utilised as at 31 March 2020. As mentioned in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 June 2017, as at
31 March 2017, the Group had used approximately HK$19.5
million for the decoration and other opening costs for Zentral
and approximately HK$10.4 million for additional working capital
and other general corporate purposes, which were designated
uses as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
13 January 2014. During the year ended 31 March 2020, parts
of the remaining net proceeds from the IPO had been utilised
in accordance with the revised allocation plan as set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 22 June 2017 and

FREREZRE

BRAMBENESRIEFEENAE105.68 85
T RZETE=ZA=+—H " EF£103.78
BEETEOWHA  BUAATBHA-ZT—+
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31 March 2020, and the unutilised portion remain deposited TFREBFESRHEE ZSEEMIEOT:
with licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong. This is
summarised as follows:
Net proceeds utilised
EHAMGHERE
Proposed use
of unutilised
net proceeds
from the IPO as
set out in the
announcement During the Unutilised net
dated As at year ended As at proceeds as at
22 June 2017 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
BEARA=Z-t
FRAZTZRZ I
AEREYZ 2 g 33
BERARBEL R g 32 B ZA=t-H
ABAMBRE “Z-NF ZHA=t-H b g 32 ZERBR
Use of proceeds FENERE FHEZERRER =A=t-H t¥E =ZA=t-H FBHERE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEER
(i) settlement of consideration () BELBERBREZE
payable for acquisition of TRE
Ningbo AUX 57.0 57.0 — 57.0 —
(ii) research of business expansion (i) £KHEWE - BEEFR
including but not limited to BREMEBRMEER
clubbing business and property ¥BR—RARAE
management business, and
general corporate purposes 10.7 3.2 5.6 8.8 19
(iif) capital expenditures, (i) EXHY 2842 H
working capital, other capital HERFT KR EM KA
requirements and other general AfE
corporate purposes 8.0 8.0 — 8.0 —
75.7 68.2 5.6 73.8 19
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The net proceeds from the IPO which remained unutilised as at
31 March 2020 are expected to be applied for the designated
purposes by 31 March 2021.

The net proceeds from the Placing of new shares of the
Company were approximately HK$54.1 million, which had been
used in the manner as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 July 2017. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
had utilised all such net proceeds for working capital and the
acquisition of Mini Club.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 3 January 2014 which shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date, subject to early
termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Eligible Participants (as defined below) and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to the following persons (“Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives, or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including any non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or

any of its subsidiaries;

(ili)  any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, the

assessment criteria of which are:

(1) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(2)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(3) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(4)  length of service or contribution to the Group.
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The Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
Shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be allotted or
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as
defined in the Prospectus)), being 30,000,000 Shares. The total
number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme to an Eligible Participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant on or before
the relevant acceptance date. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from
that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall expire on 2 January 2024.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2020, 2,745,000 options had
been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 1 April 2019 and throughout the year ended 31 March

2020, there was no option outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
27,316,000 Shares representing 7.28% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of the Company, the Company had a
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020 and as at the date of
approval of this report of the Directors, pursuant to which the
Company shall indemnify the Directors against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which any of them may
incur by reason of any act done in execution of their duty in
their respective offices, except such as they shall incur through
their own fraud or dishonesty. The Company has maintained
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the Group
were conducted during the year on a continuing basis for which
relevant announcements had been made by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

(@) Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 11 December 2018)
On 15 October 2018, Ningbo AUX and Ningbo AUX
Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Ningbo AUX Real Estate”) (for
itself and as trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries
from time to time) entered into an agreement (the “2018
Supplemental Agreement”) to amend certain terms of
the framework agreement entered into on 7 November
2016 for the provision of various types of residential
property management services by Ningbo AUX Property
to Ningbo AUX Real Estate (the "“2016 Framework
Agreement”). Furthermore, Ningbo AUX entered into a
property management services framework agreement
(the “2018 Framework Agreement 1”) with AUX Group
Company Limited (“AUX Group”) (for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time) and
a property management services framework agreement
(the “2018 Framework Agreement I1”) with Ningbo
Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo Sanxing
Medical”) (for itself and as trustee for the benefit of its

RAFERAR - RIFEBREF S AIHETZR
19 #8 B /327,316,000% - 16 AR E B2 #EITRA
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subsidiaries from time to time) respectively on 15 October
2018 for the provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance
and cleaning services for offices, car park units and/
or commercial properties. As at the date of the above
agreements, Ningbo AUX Real Estate and AUX Group
were companies each held as to 85% by Mr. Zheng Jian
Jiang, a controlling shareholder of the Company indirectly
holding approximately 58.66% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company, and Ningbo Sanxing was
a 30%-controlled company held by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang.
As such, Ningbo AUX Real Estate, AUX Group and Ningbo
Sanxing were associates of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang and
connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the 2016 Framework Agreement as amended by the 2018
Supplemental Agreement (the "Amended 2016 Framework
Agreement”), the 2018 Framework Agreement | and the
2018 Framework Agreement Il constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Amended 2016 Framework Agreement, the
2018 Framework Agreement | and the 2018 Framework
Agreement Il are disclosed below:

(i) Amended 2016 Framework Agreement

Under the Amended 2016 Framework Agreement,
Ningbo AUX shall provide management and
maintenance services in respect of residential
properties and facilities of property development
projects of Ningbo AUX Real Estate before
delivery, sales offices management services, unsold
residential units property management services and
vacant retail shop property management services
to Ningbo AUX Real Estate for a term commencing
on 1 January 2017, and ending on 31 December
2020. The above transactions shall be subject to
the annual cap of RMB34.0 million, RMB30.0 million,
RMB47.7 million and RMB55.6 million for the years
ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 and the
year ending 31 December 2020 respectively.
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(ii) 2018 Framework Agreement |

Pursuant to the 2018 Framework Agreement |,
Ningbo AUX shall provide office and commercial
property management services and car park
management services to the AUX Group for a
term commencing on the date of approval by
the independent shareholders at the EGM, i.e.
27 December 2018, and ending on 31 December
2020. The annual cap in respect of the above
transactions is RMB0.3 million, RMB3.7 million and
RMB3.7 million for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2019 and the year ending 31 December
2020 respectively.

(iii) 2018 Framework Agreement I/

In accordance with the 2018 Framework Agreement
I, Ningbo AUX shall provide office property
management services and car park management
services to Ningbo Sanxing for a term commencing
on the date of approval by the independent
shareholders at the EGM, i.e. 27 December 2018,
and ending on 31 December 2020. The annual cap
in respect of the above transactions is RMB0.04
million, RMB0.4 million and RMBO0.4 million for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 and the
year ending 31 December 2020 respectively.

Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 10 April 2018)

On 14 February 2018, Ningbo AUX as supplier and Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital Company Limited (“Ningbo Mingzhou
Hospital”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a
30%-controlled company held indirectly by Mr. Zheng
Jian Jiang, a controlling shareholder of the Company, as
customer entered into a framework service agreement
(the “Framework Service Agreement”) in relation to
the provision of property housekeeping, transportation
and other ancillary services by Ningbo AUX to Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital and/or its subsidiaries from time
to time for a term of three years from 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2021. The annual cap in respect of the fees
under the Framework Service Agreement is RMB21 million
for the year ended 31 March 2019, RMB26 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and RMB27 million for the year
ending 31 March 2021.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms or better and according to the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the board of directors
of the Company containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group and confirming the matters set out in rule 14A.56
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
those related party transactions which constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
which are set out in the section headed “"Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 79 to 82. The other related party
transactions set out therein constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are exempt
from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the board

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AUX International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AUX
International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 92 to 195, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ("the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) EREETTEE(E

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment

FEME - BERREZRE

Refer to accounting policy note 2(i)(ii) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI @I E M E20)i) R A& EEN L2

The key audit matter

BREEITEE

Among the Group’s business are a club and three restaurant
and bar outlets in Hong Kong.
BEEEZEBINEBLE —Ham ZHERENEE
)E o

At 31 March 2020, the net book value of the Group's
property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leased properties, amounted to HK$17.8 million,
HK$12.7 million of which related to the operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets.
RZZE_TF=ZA=+—H  EBEEENYE BELXHE
(BHEAEEVEXELANEAEEE) NEREFERIZAE
B HhR/BEBTHEEGM  ZEBIEBPEERR
B -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
a segment loss of HK$9.2 million in respect of the operation
of clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets. The
current economic environment and impact of the COVID-19
pandemic since early 2020 and hence weak consumer
sentiment in the clubbing and catering sectors have created
uncertainties in relation to the financial performance of the
Group's operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets. Consequently, management considered that
impairment indicators of property, plant and equipment
existed as at 31 March 2020.
BE_Z_TF=A=+—HILFE  BE5ERTBLY
g BEBRNBEBMEEXBHESHBERI2ZAEEET - &
BEAINEEREURB-Z-_ZFVHERERBEE
EHBERGREREELORKS Y EEENGH -
ERMEEPIERBOPERATRAEEN - Bt - &2
BRR V¥ BEARBR-_Z_TF=A=+—HFHE
WE TR o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONERZSE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the
following:

BMFEDE BEARXRBZRENETREF
BETHIFE:

e evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the allocation of property, plant
and equipment to each CGU;

e TEERENRECELBEMUNERAUALD
¥ BELARBIEEZRSCELBMLD

B

e assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which
included evaluating the impairment
indicators identified by management and
assessing the impairment assessment
methodology adopted with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e HAYTEREBEEMNMENGHERER B
S2R[ITGFTEANER . HEEEH

YR (E B R N R R B0 BB BT ik 77 R 1T AT

1B ;

e obtaining and inspecting the value in use
calculations prepared by management
and on which the directors’ impairment
assessments of the property, plant and
equipment were based;

s EMYREEEEMERAERAHME
TR 55 2 3% 6 HE 1T RUE AT A B DA L R IR B (%
REETER:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HREITSEEHA

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

EME - BERREBZREGE)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(i)(ii) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

FRH LM E20)i) R A& EHEN L2
The key audit matter

BREEITEE

Management performed impairment assessments of
property, plant and equipment for each separately
identifiable cash-generating unit ("CGU") with indication of
impairment using the value in use model and compared the
aggregate carrying values of the respective CGUs, to which
the property, plant and equipment had been allocated, with
the net present values of the cash flow forecasts for each
CGU being assessed. Based on the impairment assessments,
impairment losses of HK$1.8 million were recognised for the
year.
ERECHRACEABEREYAREFRNZAIHZNRS
ELEBM(REELEEMDOYE  BERRBETRERT
i UHYWE BEAREBEESENHBERSELESLNE
REERTGNZRcELAEURSRERAN FREET
LLE - RBRBEN G AFEHIABEGEEISEEBT -

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement, in
particular in estimating future revenue, future operating
costs, the growth rate and the discount rate applied.
FHRRSREBANGRIREREENEAHE - LEER
AERBIRA S RRGERA - BREEARAOFTRE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONERZSE

challenging the key assumptions and
estimates adopted by management in
the discounted cash flow forecasts by
comparing the significant inputs, which
included future revenue, future operating
costs and the growth rate with historical
performance, and externally derived data,
which included projected inflation rates
published by external research institutes;

FRALBRERBARE  BERAKREKA
RRGEHA - BEKLERTNEREEIN
MAIGEIE - BEINBHAREBEMOTE
TREE HEEEEBAFRRERE
FrPTER e B R B (A AT IR L B &

assessing the discount rate applied in
the discounted cashflow forecasts by
benchmarking against those of other similar
companies in the same industry;
SRATEHEMBURE  FEERBN
RBREMERAERANITEREX



Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BAREITSEEHA)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

AEME - BERREBZREGE)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(i)(ii) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI @I E M E20)i) R A& EEN L2
The key audit matter

MREEGHEE

We identified assessing impairment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because of the significant
management judgement required in making assumptions
and estimations, which can be inherently uncertain and
subject to management bias.

BB EDE BELRBZRERTABREAEER
THREFEERE LGS SIRERENE XL - BEH
MEEEE I THEMLRARXEERBZIRIFMTE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONERZSE

evaluating the historical accuracy of
management’s value in use calculations
by comparing the forecasts at the end of
the previous financial year for revenue,
operating costs and the growth rate with
the actual outcomes in the current year
and investigating reasons for any significant
differences between the forecasts and
actual results; and

FRBEEERE LEMBFRERERA - &
ERAREBRENFAINEEFEREES
RETHE  AEEBEEEMTENR
REENERT THERIEERER
ZAEREMERZENREA: &

performing sensitivity analyses on both
the discount rates and future revenue
assumptions and considering the resulting
impact on the impairment assessments
and whether there were any indicators
of management bias in the selection of
assumptions.

HIFTRERRRRAETEREDN - I
EZREHBEFHEEENTE  UERRE
ERRREEAENEEERENTR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BREBMRESFESMBRRABNERE

BANER RHGAMBERREBEERES T
FERNRFFRERMEHNEXNBRR ARG
AEFRE  YHABRRMERNOZBEHRSE -
BARERBRBBRERS © FRILAS - I
WETAREEMAR - AR IR ARSH
NE - BEMEMALTEENARERER -

EERFRSKIHRRE  ETERBLRR(GE
ABEFEAETHET  EX - ERBERR
AAF R AR RE IR o SRRRPRAL T DA BRRF Bk 88
Ml MREEFAEHNTFIEBIOEALRA
EFERAMBRRERERBYBRRAE
HE R TE - R AR R RRRIEE
* o

ERB(GEAEMEMETEFNBRES
é J_go

MERTEXRHE  RIETERERE
fion

E24
E24

o HERIMIFMBANKFRERMEBES
MHBmERFEENBERBRANER - &5
RYITEFAEFUARYELRR LR E
RMARMEENREE  EREMER
RYERE - RNIREFAIRE S B aR - 3
ERER  ERRM - SOEBR AR
2Lt FREERAMGFMERNEXN
BREUEWER SN R EREAERM
BYMERBRRAARER -

o THREZRHEMAABIES - ARFEE
MBEFHEF  EENAIEY SEERE
ZHEBRMEERBR -

s FEEEMRAGHHENREMLRE
SRtARHMBEREENAENE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Felix Kwo Hang Lee.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

MORER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_ZF=A=+—RLFEUETERT)

2020 2019

—F=-%FF —FTAF

Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 FHER THETT

Revenue Y &= 4 339,972 317,568
Other revenue H fib W 2= 5 11,088 6,742
Other net income Hib g A F58 6 12,616 6,979
Cost of inventories sold BEFERK A (12,594) (18,791)
Property cleaning expenses MEFTERT (59,582) (44,049)
Staff costs BT A 7(b) (156,096) (144,284)
Depreciation and amortisation HEKHIH 7(c) (24,612) (17,899)
Property rentals and related expenses VMEReRERRX (9,438) (27,204)
Provision for onerous contracts EEE ) EE 7(c) — (3,924)
Impairment losses on property, mE - BEKRERE

plant and equipment &5 18 7(c) (1,823) (4,255)
Advertising and marketing expenses BEENEHEMAX (4,198) (10,704)
Utilities expenses KEE (12,300) (13,205)
Repair and maintenance expenses HiERBEERS (17,096) (11,243)
Other operating expenses Eg T (33,815) (36,129)
Profit/(loss) from operations BREELRN (FE) 32,122 (398)
Finance costs B & A A 7(a) (2,956) (2,346)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AER (EE) 7 29,166 (2,744)
Income tax Frig 7t 8(a) (15,953) (6,891)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERBEN(BE) 13,213 (9,635)

SRERN(FE) 11

Profit/(loss) per share

Basic and diluted HEAN# S 3.5 centsiE il (2.6) cents Bl

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

et AEBR-_Z-NFOA-ARBEETEREE
RERBRABBGRELERE6 - RIBUT X 1
BREHATEY - R0 °

information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 99 to 195 form part of these financial F99ZE195B MM FFE KN ZEM K HRE A — 50
AN

statements. g7 °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GORZREMZENER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_ZF=A=+—RLFEUETERT)

DOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OOOBOOBOOE OO GOOOOOOO OO

2020 2019
—E-F —T-NF
(Note)

(K1 at)

$'000 $'000
FET FHET

DOV OOO SOOI BRI OBD GOOOOOOO OO

Profit/(loss) for the year ERBEN(BE) 13,213 (9,635)
Other comprehensive income for the year HRHM2EWKE
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ R AJGEER D HE 18w 2

profit or loss: HH
Exchange differences on translation of the BREMBRARIZWBHREZ

financial statements of subsidiaries EHEHEIIHBTE)

(with nil tax effect) (15,087) (11,927)
Total comprehensive income for the year FrRZEWKEHLEEE (1,874) (21,562)

AEER-_T-NAFHNA-BRBEETENEE
RIEMEBERHBREEIF16E - RIFUTE - I
BREABTTEY - B2

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the  Mfat -
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 99 to 195 form part of these financial 991958 B [T 5T % Ak 3% Z 01 78 iR = &9 — &6
paN

statements. 4y e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BN R

At 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZB_THF=A=+—BUBTETR)

DOOOOOOO SOOI OOO SOOI OO OO SOOI OO OO

DOOOOOOOCOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO0 OO BEOBOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOSOOE OO OOOO

Non-current assets

E(RBDEE

Note
B 5

2020

—E-%f

$'000
TER

2019

—E-NF

(Note)
(H1at)

$'000
FHET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRZE 12 17,824 8,913
Intangible assets BEEE 13 50,261 61,326
Gooduwill B 14 60,432 56,850
Prepayments B IR 17 — 100
Deferred tax assets EIERTBE BE 23(b) 2,097 1,694
130,614 128,883
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 927 3,520
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E UGB 17 92,332 98,041
Restricted bank deposits R B8R 1T R 18 2,586 2,439
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREFERS 18 206,735 194,855
302,580 298,855
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H & FRIE 19 100,687 104,592
Contract liabilities aHBaE 20 45,349 53,058
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 21,054 168
Amount due to the controlling JiE AT 2 R AR BR R IR
shareholder 22 2,435 192
Current taxation BN HA %% 18 23(a) 8,239 6,979
177,764 164,989
Net current assets REBEEFE 124,816 133,866
Total assets less current liabilities EEHBERRBAERE 255,430 262,749
Non-current liabilities kRBEEB
Loan from the controlling shareholder REZRBEER 22 109,165 116,720
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 1,075 450
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 23(b) 16,816 15,331
127,056 132,501
NET ASSETS EERE 128,374 130,248
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR K

At 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZB_THF=A=+—BUBTETR)

DOOOOOOO SOOI OOO SOOI OO OO SOOI OO OO

2020 2019
—E_ZH —E-NF
(Note)
(Ht7t)
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 FET FET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#EE
Share capital fi% < 24(b) 3,750 3,750
Reserves it 124,624 126,498
TOTAL EQUITY REHAHE 128,374 130,248

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson R-ZE-FE XA -t+tHhEBKEETSH ERFE

29 June 2020. R -
Chan Hon Ki Shen Guoying
PR & H A
Director Director
EFE o
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the  Mfit: AEBR_T-NFOA—BHEBLEETEBNEE
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative RERT B BHREERE16 - BEFEWFE -
information is not restated. See note 2(c). BREBATFEY - RHWF2c) -

The notes on pages 99 to 195 form part of these financial Z99ZE19B MM FFEKZEV KR E A — 5B
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEESEER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z_ZF=A=+—RLFEUETERT)

DOOOOO OOV O OO SOOI OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO SOOI OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOE
Share Share Capital  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
RBRE ROEE EARE LERE ERRB RitER ERZLR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FET FET TERT FiET FET FET FET
OOOOOO OOV OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOO OO SOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOOOOOOO OO SOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOO
Balance at 1 April 2018 R-B-NEMA—HZ#&&H 3,750 177,000 2,500 — 10,537 (41977) 151,810
Changes in equity for the year HBZ-Z-hAE=A=+-A
ended 31 March 2019: LEECEZEE:
Loss for the year FNER — — — — — (9,635) (9,635)
Other comprehensive income FREMZEN S
for the year — — — — (11,927) — (11,927)
Total comprehensive income FREEK @ BT
for the year — — — — (11,927) (9,635) (21,562)
Transferred to statutory reserve BAETERE — — — 2,213 — (2,213) —
Balance at 31 March 2019 and R=-ZE-hAE=A=+-AR
1 April 2019 “E-hENA-AZz&H 3,750 177,000 2,500 2,213 (1,390) (53,825) 130,248
Changes in equity for the year HZ-Z-ZF
ended 31 March 2020: ZA=+-BLEE
ZEERE:
Profit for the year F R F - - - — - 13,213 13,213
Other comprehensive income FNEME2EYE
for the year —_ — —_ —_ (15,087) —_ (15,087)
Total comprehensive income FRNREKEER
for the year = = = = (15,087) 13,213 (1,874)
Transferred to statutory reserve BAKTERE = = — 5,063 — (5,063) -
Balance at 31 March 2020 WZZZZEZF=+—HZ
g 3,750 177,000 2,500 7,276 (16,477) (45,675) 128,374
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOO OOV COOOOOOOO OO OOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOO

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 99 to 195 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
gz‘ﬁ iﬁuﬁl)lbié&

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z_ZF=A=+—RLFEUETERT)

2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NF
(Note)
(H &%)
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 FET ?ﬁ&ﬁ
Operating activities REFTH
Profit/(loss) before taxation BE AR R (B8) 29,166 (2,744)
Adjustments for: BT SHEELFHE:
Bank interest income ]|ATH B A 5 (6,694) (4,604)
Finance costs =N 7(a) 2,956 2,346
Depreciation e 7(c) 17,322 10,300
Amortisation B 5 7(c) 7,290 7,599
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHB AR UKD 6 (5,000) —
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME  BEKIHK
plant and equipment EE 6 544 42
Gain on termination of lease agreement .Tﬁ%\ﬁr’] gk E A&
P& 7(c) (19) —
Impairment losses on trade receivables Z 5 FE W R IE R (A 5 B 7(c) 2,751 2,314
Impairment losses on property, Y- BEREZERE
plant and equipment &8 7(c) 1,823 4,255
Net foreign exchange gain fE & Wz 55 (8,204) (7,130)
Changes in working capital: BEESES®EH:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL, (M) 2,751 (530)
Increase in trade and other receivables EZ 5 N B FE UK 3k TE 12 0 (547) (35,110)
Decrease in amount due from JE W — & A B 5 SR TE R
a related party — 540
(Increase)/decrease in restricted PR B IR 7717 31 (3 0)
bank deposits Ve : ¥ (313) 130
(Decrease)/increase in trade and E%&ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁ
other payables ) KN (102) 16,130
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities ’]Eﬁ B ) 10 (4,495) 7,951
Cash generated from operations REEERS 39,229 1,489
The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") 'JLEPEE)\E i
Corporate Income Tax paid ([FREDDZEMSH (12,376) (5,345)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating L& FEHEXE (FTA)
activities BEFHE 26,853 (3,856)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

IE% /)ILE%Z

an\

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_ZF=A=+—RLFEUETERT)

2020 2019
— 7 —_ q—: _j-LEF
(Note)
(K7 77)
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 THERT ?ﬁ&m
Investing activities RETES
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 IRITFE R L = 1,000
Payment for the purchase of property, BEME  BEREBRNR
plant and equipment (2,660) (2,828)
Proceeds from sale of property, I:H%%¥ ﬁ%&
plant and equipment % 6 P15 70 1A 428 13
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries U4 ,Eﬁ SN2/ 72
H e F R 25 (6,901) —
Prepayment for acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR 2 B I — (100)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBAT 2
a subsidiary e AFHE 5,000 —
Interest received 2 F B 6,694 4,604
Net cash generated from REZHELERSFHE
investing activities 2,561 2,689
Financing activities BMETEH
Interest on loan from the controlling shareholder B {ZE R R E K 2 F B
paid 18(b) — (2,127)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENfAEReH AR 18(b) (5,022) (161)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSNF B D 18(b) (713) 27)
Net cash used in financing activities METHANREFE (5,735) (2,319)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERRESLEFEYE M
cash equivalents (B E5 23,679 (3,482)
Cash and cash equivalents FUORERELEEY
at the beginning of the year 194,855 206,788
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEERBEZ2TE (11,799) (8,457)
Cash and cash equivalents FREGRRLEEY
at the end of the year 206,735 194,855

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective

approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Previously, cash
payments under operating leases made by the Group as a lessee of
$23,145,000 were classified as operating activities in the consolidated cash
flow statement. Under HKFRS 16, except for short-term lease payments,
payments for leases of low value assets and variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals paid
on leases are now split into capital element and interest element (see
note 18(b)) and classified as financing cash outflows. Under the modified
retrospective approach, the comparative information is not restated.
Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in

note 2(c).

The notes on pages 99 to 195 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE B ISR R B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

AUX International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 14 January 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies
Law”). The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) is principally
engaged in operation of clubbing business and restaurant
and bar outlets and provision of property management
services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

—REHR

B HiERZEEERAR(RARA DR
= -AtHBEREREHSRFE
“E-ZFBIRNEHEERERR
ERERAANERERSEMMA LR —
BMERLERRIA - ARAREME LT
(TXHBINEE]D TERELEGH
BERELBEPEXBEMEHRDEETER
& o

BERXGFTHE
(a) EHEEBH

ZEVHHRRCDEBRE B SR
(ARG AG)EMHZAEE
REEVHERESENTEEHBHR
EEA] BREAAEBZENEE
MBRELL FEGFENTE
BEEAMDRRE) BEARE
FHRAINE B RAURD 2 3B BERE
mE - REUBBRNAT AT M
ERGMERARESFLTHRANTE
MRDZERBEER - A EHE
RAZERSFTHRKENT -

EEGHMAGCRMBER R
RETEAUBHREER > YRA
SEER 2B ERE MM
RERRA - VB EBZEE S M
HAEEERN BTG HREZE
MEABREHENZEFNBRE
MR - BRE RN FE2)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of
a lease. It introduces a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except
for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets.
The lessor accounting requirements are brought
forward from HKAS 17 and remain substantially
unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from
1 April 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance at 1 April
2019. Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

2

EXSFHRERGA
() BHBERZH

EEEHMASCEMREAEERD
AEetHEERERN —ENEE
MEHmELR  BEMBEHRELER
65 - HE - RETEEMHRE
EAMERTA -

SREBMBWELED BN HE
S BECAERGASERR L
ENREAMMEHRNBENME
MEBLBERARNBEERATE - K
SEHREREMEBAN S HE
MARLEREOFTERKBE -

BEEMBHEERF165%  HE

FEVBREENEGSRAREER
SHERIE7SE - HE - RAAERE

ZE(ERMEREREZES)R
BEASR BrxHed ERHE
TR (EREZEE)RESISH
BEHE-#F hBEBEENRE
ZEBR)RBE2N  AFEHRHEE
EREARZZAE - st &M A
SIAE—&FERN X ERAEA
EHERACAREENREES
BfE - HEBHARAANUTHEE
(EHHEDREEEEEMER
She HBEABRREDNEABEE
SRIEMFI7HE R ERB EERFT

e
=

&8 M % RS ERIE165% T 5l AR
SMSEMREERBERTE EEEY
BHRREAERAFIHHEHER
MBRR BB RALRREREDN

By 488
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AEEE-ZT—NFNA—HEHKX
FE A SIS ERAE1698 - &
SEDERKEREBYE - WHE I
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LLEERT AERITEELZRES
G EBIE17ER 2T o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be determined
by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were
entered into or changed on or after 1 April
2019. For contracts entered into before 1 April
2019, the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements
are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts
that were previously assessed as leases
under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted
for as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts
previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt. As far as the Group
is concerned, these newly capitalised leases
are primarily in relation to property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in note 27. For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see note 2(h).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1
April 2019), the Group determined the length
of the remaining lease terms and measured
the lease liabilities for the leases previously
classified as operating leases at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 April 2019. The weighted
average of the incremental borrowing rates
used for determination of the present value of
the remaining lease payments was 6.5%.

2 EXRETHBRAE

() EFEEZHH)
BEEBEHREER F165 HE
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b.

AEASHREERERBESR
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& 7 B % S RSB 1655 5 B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect
of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends
within 12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the
lease term ends on or before 31 March
2020;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the Group applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for
a similar class of underlying asset in a
similar economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the
previous assessment for onerous contract
provisions as at 31 March 2019 as an
alternative to performing an impairment
review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAXRE:HEE

(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) () EFBEKE(HF)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued) EBHBHEERF16%  HE
(&
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b. REASHEELERBE®
(continued) & (4F)
The following table reconciles the operating TERRR-ZZE-NF=A=*
lease commitments as disclosed in note 27 as — B2 E K EHE
at 31 March 2019 to the opening balance for AEEER_T-AFHEA—H
lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019: HRHEAGEFNESR Y
BE -
2019
—B-NEF
R—H
$'000
FHET

DOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO

Operating lease commitments at RZE-NF=ZA=+—82
31 March 2019 KEMEEAE 15,443
Less: commitments relating to short-term B R EATE B & B A eR T AH HA
leases and other leases with RZEZEF=RA="1—
remaining lease term ending on or Atz Al JE m B &R
before 31 March 2020 exempt from HEEREWHEERHA
capitalisation R E (14,171)
1,272
Less: total future interest expenses B ARKRAMEERRE (128)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FI&RMAENKZRE -
discounted using the incremental borrowing FHA T —AFMNA—H
rate at 1 April 2019 IS E AR 1144
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at Il RN=-ZT—hLhF=ZA=+—H
31 March 2019 HRAZBMERERE 618
Total lease liabilities recognised at RZZE-NAFOA—B#R
1 April 2019 HEaFERS 1,762

DOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases HEARIDBEAKEHEZHE
previously classified as operating leases have BRAZEAREECKEBFR
been recognised at an amount equal to the HEBGEMERSEEENS
amount recognised for the remaining lease BTIAER -

liabilities.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)
So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 on leases previously classified as finance
leases is concerned, the Group is not required
to make any adjustments at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, other than changing
the captions for the balances. Accordingly,
instead of “obligations under finance leases”,
these amounts are included within “lease
and the depreciated carrying
amount of the corresponding leased assets is
identified as right-of-use assets. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity.

liabilities”,

The following table summarises the impacts
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position:

2 EXREHBRHA
() EFEEZHH)
BEEBEHREER F165 HE
(&)
b. ABASHEEFZEIRBER
&#)

ERMB BV HREERF16
LMD BAMEHEENT
ENFEMS  AKEBEAR
BREREEMBHRELEASR
1655 & BF L E A AR - KX
HERGEHRTARRI - Bt
ZETEAAEEREIAM
R A AT BRI A - BARE
HEEEMNTERAERER
EREEE - E%THH%D%/\Z*
BRI EBZE -

TEBA AT BN RS L
A SE165R H AR B4R & MBIk
MEROTE

Line items in the consolidated  HHFBH K HEER
statement of financial position ~ F16H T ERAHK
impacted by the adoption of MRRKWIEE

HKFRS 16:

Property, plant and equipment

nEx - BEERE

Total non-current assets FRBEELE
Lease liabilities (current) HEAR(RE)
Current liabilities RBEE

Net current assets RBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities EEABRTHAR
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEAEGHRED)
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBLE
Net assets EEFE

Carrying  Capitalisation Carrying
amount at of operating amount at
31 March 2019 lease contracts 1 April 2019
W=Z-1F ‘ et S
SA=t-R &AL mA—A
ZREE SERESY 2 BRHEE
$'000 $'000 $/000

THAT TET TET

8913 1144 10,057
128,883 1144 130,027

168 846 1,014

164,989 846 165,835
133,866 (846) 133,020
262,749 298 263,047

450 298 748

132,501 298 132,799
130,248 - 130,248
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group
After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019,
the Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their capital element
and interest element (see note 18(b)). These
elements are classified as financing cash
outflows, similar to how leases previously
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17
were treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating leases
under HKAS 17. Although total cash flows
are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore results in a significant change in
presentation of cash flows within the cash flow
statement (see note 18(c)).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

2 EX®

(c)

(d)

SR ()

SRS E (F)
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EBERERERMEENT
ERXEEREEERE M
JEREBRERNHEHNIZERE
EHERBRBELEHEMELN
HERX -

RIBEREXRFT  AEB(ER
EBEAN)ARENMCEEERTE
HTHA’V%E,%SK*B D R B

o (R K E18(b) « ZE &5
"*Eﬁmﬂéﬁ%mﬁ(éﬁiim
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on

a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business

combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit ("CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and

is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

On disposal of a CGU during the vyear, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying property,
plant and equipment (see note 2(h)), are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
E)

(CAE TR R)

2

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the shorter of their
economic useful life or

— Properties leased
for own use
terms of the leases

— Leasehold
improvements

Over the unexpired term
of lease or 2 years

— Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

2 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Customer relationships 4 years
(clubbing business)
— Property management contracts 10 years

and related customer
relationships

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(f) and 2(i)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
(continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
"property, plant and equipment” and presents
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the
Group classified leases as finance leases if the
leases transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group were
classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)
(B)

Leased assets (continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019
(continued)

Where the Group acquired the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets were
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at
rates which wrote off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses were accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(i)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments were charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

Where the Group had the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases were charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis was more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses ("ECLs”) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:

—  fixed-rate financial

effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

current

—  variable-rate financial assets:

effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that are

expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are

expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.
For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR

2

EXETHERE

(i

FEBEEREERE(HA)
() =HITAECGEESE(E

— ZHEHSEEEE:

EHMEERRZTEA)
BHEEEBEDRBUTREE

e

— NREAREHEERE:Z

FBEEAERS AR
BRARREHEZEZNE
HEMELEZEBR R

%
BEEAERBEREERR
BABEANER ZEH
BwANAREEZRE
BHNEHBRHPELEZE

18 -

BHRUWFIAZ BERERBRR
HEER2HEREEEENS
BitE - RFTREEZEAY
EEBERERERNARBZE
SLEEERE RO B EEEE
THE IRBEBAREDN
RER S HE BB E [ B
A — AR BB R th B T A
HEITHE -

AR ERTAMS A
SHEERNEBRREHRSTN2
BEAEMEEREE  BRIFED
MHERAKR SR TANEER
BRI - RULBERT - &
BRERASERE2HRANER
BENTEAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held);, or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days or 360 days
past due depending on whether the financial
asset is related to clubbing and restaurant
and bar outlets operations or property
management services. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;
— an actual or significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s

expected

external or internal credit rating (if
available);
— an actual or significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

expected

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

market,

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument'’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(s)(v) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial
impaired includes the following observable

events:

asset is credit-

— significant financial difficulties of the

debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a CGU).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit

losses and impairment of assets

(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

()

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(i)(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business or in the form
of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(i)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see note 2(l)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(s)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(1)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

M

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see note 2(k)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the
Group under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme as defined contribution retirement
plan in respect of the operations in Hong
Kong. The employer’s monthly contributions to
the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of each
employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contribution relating to the staff in the PRC
are made to the PRC local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC.

The cost of all these schemes is charged
to profit or loss of the Group for the years
concerned and the assets of all these schemes
are held separately from those of the Group.

Income tax
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

2

EXETH

(q)

PGB (4E)

R(AE

B HA 5 I8 46 B Ko R AT A TR A R A Ko
ERZFBI LY - BT THEE -
fief A8 2 B 3% AN 5= B AL g A]ARO% 98
HATERE N SRR TR E E R AN
MIEAEEE BN ASNUTREIME
- RSN BEEERNMKR AR
EREE - METHIAEE R 2R
R R EMEEH:

(i)

I AEERBEMS
ARR AN EERIZFEEE
=

HESRREREENFER
&k
BERENBEEENRABEMS
5% % & E M A E BB R
HRETLIAT B — IR R
PRSI A R

HERERRER %X
WETRERNE RS
ZEERE A
Yg [B] S FE 7R & 1
EERSBENERKY
B RIEFEEEER
M BEEERBHE
BIEIR IR AR - A
BRZEENRBEZA

& o

pi

¥ B

{

b

SO T

S

19
)

>

Annual Report 2020 & 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

=
E)

2

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(r) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts
(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

(ii)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of
continuing with the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods or the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of food and beverages and tobacco
products
Revenue from sale of food and beverages
and tobacco products is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the
products.

Prepayments from customers in respect of the
membership schemes operated by the Group
which are considered to be unearned at the
reporting date are shown as contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Revenue from club operations
Revenue from club operations (including
entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event rental
income) is recognised when the services have
been provided to the customers.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised when:

—  the promotion events have been held; or

—  the services have been rendered, and it
is probable that sponsorship income will
be granted.

Property management services income
Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised over the
period of services provided to the property
occupants/owners.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

Commission income
Commission income is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person's
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executives for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's different lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a
non-current asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered impaired, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in profit or loss. These non-
current assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, except for goodwill which is tested
on an annual basis. When a decline of the assets’
recoverable amounts below the carrying amounts
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. It
is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group's assets are not readily available.
In determining value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of
sales volume and amount of operating costs.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In measuring ECLs for trade and other receivables,
the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events,
future economic conditions. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions.

current conditions and forecasts of

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary
deductible differences and unused tax losses. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
deductible differences and the unused tax losses
can be utilised, management’'s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management reassess these estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation/amortisation charges for
the property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets of similar
nature and functions, taking into account anticipated
technological and other changes. It could change
as a result of change in market demand for the
service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected wear and tear and the care and
maintenance of the asset. Management will increase
the depreciation/amortisation charge where useful
lives are shorter than previously estimated lives, or
it will write-off or write-down commercially obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets and provision of property management
services.

Revenue represents the amount received or
receivable from the sale of food and beverages
and tobacco products, revenue from other club
operations (including entrance fees, cloakroom
fees and event rental income), sponsorship income
and income arising from provision of property
management services.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed in note 4(b).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHEDIPME (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wz (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) DHFHKZE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RRBEEEFPMIBLEE S
customers by service lines and geographical HREBEFPEH 2B AD TR
location of customers is as follows: N

(ii)

VOOV OOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV QOO OOV OO0

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
$'000 $'000

F#& T FHE T

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOO0

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Revenue from contracts with & E MK HEEL
customers within the scope  F155%5EEAM

of HKFRS 15 REEFEHNZERA
Revenue from club and gMkERRE KA

restaurant operations — &E

— Hong Kong 51,970 83,431
Revenue from property MEEBSOK R

management contracts — &

— the PRC 288,002 234137

339,972 317,568

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 HOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

The Group's customer base is diversified and 25%@%@}53157773% RE
no individual customer had transactions which Z_E_TERZZT-NF=
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue during A=+— EIJJ:iEIﬁEEiTIEJ
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. BEPETHRSeHBBAS

W 25 #910% ©

Revenue expected to be recognised in (i) BHERAEERZRFLEAHE
the future arising from contracts with BEEFEXNELZ K2
customers in existence at the reporting

date

For property management services, the MYEEEREME A5 E
Group recognises revenue as the services are RIRHEETKBENONEER
provided that correspond directly with the EHENRBERERKZE - K
value of performance completed. The Group SEEEE BV BEREEDE
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 155k 2 RIATHEE AR R
15 to its revenue from property management X¥EEAY WG AR%E
contracts for not to disclose the remaining SN EETFTEH R EH
performance obligations under the Group's BAEBEBBEAGNET 2 HH
existing contracts as these contracts do not BHIERT -

have a fixed term.
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business line and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the most
senior executives of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has identified two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

Segment Business

Lifestyle entertainment  Sales of food and
— Hong Kong beverages and
tobacco products
from operation of
clubbing business and
restaurant and bar
outlets

Property management Provision of property
— the PRC management services

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executives
monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the sales activities
of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

(b)
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FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is "adjusted EBITDA" i.e. "adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”, where “interest” is
regarded as including investment income and
"depreciation and amortisation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on non-
current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA
the Group's earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management
is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income from
cash balances and interest expense from
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment
assets used by the segments in their
operations.
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the most senior
executives of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 is set out below.

W 58 ] 7 AR & ()

7B E (H)
(i) DE¥E BEREERH)

REE_ZT_ZFR_ZT—N
FZAZ+—BHILFEZER
PEEDBREAFHEAER
BEETHABREEEAEE
ASRESIBZEREFAR T °

QOO OO0 QOO OOV OOV OO OO OO0 GO OO0
Property
Lifestyle entertainment management
— Hong Kong — the PRC Total
EERE MEER
— &8 — @5t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CBE-RE —T-NF ZBIBE —T-NF ZBIBE —RoNF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TERT FHT TERT FET TERT FTET
SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOORBOO SO SOOI SOOI OO0 GOOOOOOOO SOOBOBOOBOOE OO
Revenue from external s FRRIE i
customers and reportable RAUBEDHZ
segment revenue g 51,970 83,431 288,002 234,137 339,972 317,568
SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOORBOO SO SOOI SOOI OO0 GOOOOOOOO SOOBOBOOBOOE OO
Reportable segment (loss)/ AHREIB(FR)/
profit (adjusted EBITDA) wmA (AR
EBITDA) (9,221) (12,932) 49,986 29,432 40,765 16,500
QOO OO0 OOV OOOROOR OOV OOD OO OOV OO SOOI OO0 OO OO0 QOO OO OOD OO
Interest income from bank RITEHF BHA
deposits 4 6 6,616 4,625 6,620 4,631
Interest expenses BRI (595) (27) 9) - (604) (27)
Depreciation and amortisation -8 3 (15,200) (9,508) (8,296) (8,380) (23,496) (17,888)
Impairment losses on property, ~ #1%¥ - HE&
plant and equipment REREEE (1,823) (4,255) - — (1,823) (4,255)
Reportable segment assets TRESPHBEE 31,805 27113 395,616 365,480 427,421 392,593
Additions to non-current segment FRAE IR E
assets during the year DEERE
(note (i) (i &) 35,821 6,444 647 2,798 36,468 9,242
Reportable segment liabilities A} %2 HEE 28,067 26,157 136,577 129,551 164,644 155,708
SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOEOEOOOOOOOE SOOI OO OO0 GO SOOI OOOE OO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)
Notes:

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April
2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 2(c).

(i) Additions to non-current segment assets consist
of additions to property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill, including additions
arising from the acquisition of Mini Club Hong Kong
Limited (“Mini Club”) (see note 25).

1 44 AUX International Holdings Limited / B % S BB Z BB R AR

(b)

RoBBE (&)
7R E (A
(i) DE¥E BEREERH)

Bt

0]

(if)

REBR-_FT-AFMA—BR
AEEITEREERERES
BTSSR &5 2 A 51657 - IRIR I
FECHBRERTTES - R
B EE2(c) ©

REERDOBEERTETE
K @& 85 W EE Mini Club
Hong Kong Limited ([Mini
CubDE £ 2 A E(R K &
25) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0O OOOOOOOOOOOOOODOOOOO OOV OOV

W 58 ] 7 AR & ()

(b) DEE|E (A
(i) A& D AW E - R E
f‘ﬁf'ﬁéﬁﬁ/ﬁzgﬁ‘ﬁﬁ

OOV OOOO OO0

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue (note 4(a))

2019
—RCEHE —E-NF
$000 $'000
FER TETT

iy &

TS
Az

OOOE OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

= &

5 (W it4(a)) 339,972 317,568

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOLOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOO OO0

Profit or loss = F =R & B
Reportable segment profit KEREEIINEF P

derived from the Group's LAl & 9 B m A

external customers 40,765 16,500
Other revenue H b gz 11,088 6,742
Other net income H g AF 58 12,616 6,979
Depreciation and amortisation D& § (24,612) (17,899)
Finance costs b & A A (2,956) (2,346)
Impairment losses on property, mE - WE Kk

plant and equipment REREERE (1,823) (4,255)
Unallocated head office and Koy B 48 2B K

corporate expenses PERX (5,912) (8,465)
Consolidated profit/(loss) BRELATAR SR A

before taxation (& T‘E) 29,166 (2,744)

DOV OO OOOOOOOOOBOOBEOOEOOOOOOOOOO OO OO

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 427,421 392,593
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 2,097 1,694
Unallocated head office and Ao AR

corporate assets THEEE 3,676 33,451
Consolidated total assets REEBEBRE 433,194 427738

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOLOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOO OO0

Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AIRESBEE 164,644 155,708
Current taxation BV HA 74 18 8,239 6,979
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 16,816 15,331
Unallocated head office and Ko B AR ER &

corporate liabilities TEEE 115,121 119,472
Consolidated total liabilities REBaEERE 304,820 297,490

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OO OOOOOOOODOOOO OO0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

7 N =1
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 W#HRZIHEE)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DWW/ E(AE)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) WHED Wz - & F B E
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B BEERBEZHEK(E)
(continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April Mt AEBR-_T-AFMA—HR
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. REBITEREZEREREE
Under this approach, the comparative information is B 7% R & 2RI E165% « RIR L
not restated. See note 2(c). HECLEREABTTFEY - R
B 5E2(c) ©
(iii) Geographic information (iii)  #h 1 EH

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers and (ii)
the Group's property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill and non-current
portion of prepayments (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, the location
of the operation to which they are allocated,
in the case of intangible assets, goodwill and
non-current portion of prepayment.

TR Y E A B () A = E A 9N ET
BPEATES W 2 M (i) A £ E Y
¥ BELEE BEEE -
RE R TEMN B IERN I S
(B EERBEBEFAEHE
2 AR BREFTIE 2 32 AT
RERG R E YK EMNE I
D -YE -  BELRED
T OBTIERBEE BN
BEMNREEZERILE - 5LE
FEE BERENZKENIE
BNEAEs o m s - U R mE D
AR B o

vavv%vvvv%vvvvv%vvvv%vvvvéévvvv%vvvvvv%v%vv%vv%v>év%vv%vv%v%v%vvv%vv%Rv;;vev;l:lv;vvf?vov:r;v%vvv%vvév>va%vv>évgpvveéécvi:f%iveva€vv%vvéévv%
external customers non-current assets

#’HNEE PR ELE & BEFRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
“B-%F —T-NF -“B-FF —TAF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TET FHET THET FHET

Hong Kong BEIEM)

(place of domicile) 51,970 83,431 21,280 5,276
Mainland China A Pt 288,002 234,137 107,237 121,913
339,972 317,568 128,517 127,189

VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TP ELE:
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA T &)
5 OTHER REVENUE 5 Hitz
2020 2019
—E-SE —ZE-NF
$'000 $'000
TER FET
Bank interest income H|ITH B WA 6,694 4,604
Government grants (note) BT 4 Bh (7 72) 3,240 1,583
Others Hitp 1,154 555
11,088 6,742
Note: Government grants mainly represent unconditional discretionary B i TRRT R BY B R 3 5 B AT A R 1R R 0 A
financial support from local municipal government authorities. HRIBET B -
6 OTHER NET INCOME 6 HtWAFEHE
2020 2019
—ECRF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
TER FET
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment REEBRE (544) (42)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B B R A M s 5,000 9
Net foreign exchange gain & & W s F 8 7,483 7,012
Reversal of provision for reinstatement costs 3% [E] 18 4 Al A # /& 677 —
12,616 6,979
7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRBIAER(EE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREBBADER (B &M% STATYE
(crediting): 15 :
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
$'000 $'000
THET TET
(a) Finance costs (a) ®EE KA
Interest on loan from the controlling REZERBRREER ZHE
shareholder 2,243 2,319
Interest on lease liabilities HMEAFZME 713 27
2,956 2,346
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using Mt REBR-_ZE-NAFHA-BRBEETEY
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the FEREREBMBREERFE165 - BIE
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). WA HBRERTTFED - RM 20 -
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=
E)

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

148

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7 KH®HAEFN (&HE)E
(CONTINUED)

DOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO SO OOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD O OO OO SO

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
$'000 $'000
F#& T FET
(b) Staff costs (b) ET R A&
Contributions to defined contribution FTE M FGRIRET B R
retirement plans 20,470 19,716
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENMHEHMBETR 135,626 124,568
156,096 144,284
(c) Other items (c) HMEAR
Depreciation charge (note 12) FreEH (M t12)
— owned property, — BEVE BE
plant and equipment* & 5,657 10,049
— right-of-use assets* — ERAEEE" 11,665 251
17,322 10,300
Amortisation 5 7,290 7,599
Impairment losses on trade receivables® B o R IBREERE 2,751 2,314
Impairment losses on property, plant ME  BEKRRE
and equipment REBE 1,823 4,255
Auditors’ remuneration® 1% 25 B % B¢
— audit services — BEERK 2,580 2,500
— non-audit services — EEBERHB 26 25
Total minimum lease payments for ERIRBEBSEL
leases previously classified as BURSBRLENRE
operating leases under HKAS 17* B KH ERIB B R — 23,145
Cost of inventories sold (note 16) BEFERKAKMN F16) 12,594 18,791
Provision for onerous contracts EEE KBS (A E19)
(note 19) — 3,924
Gain on termination of lease agreement EHEEHERLETESE
2 W = (19) —
Office expenses* BT 2,234 2,566
Entertainment expenses* EBHBREB 2,805 2,588
Travelling expenses” ZIRE* 2,357 3,078
Legal and professional fees® EREMEEBERY 2,626 3,355
Security costs” REB 2,313 5,353
Gardening costs* b EESB 3,148 2,104
Government surcharges® BRI B pn & * 1,810 1,263
Bank charges and credit card ROTFEEREANAR?
commissions* 1,498 2,189
Community event costs® HEEEBRAY 1,525 1,178

OOV OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO O OROOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

7 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7 BR#H
(CONTINUED)

* The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified *
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets which
were previously included in property, plant and equipment is also
identified as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-
of-use assets at 1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of
the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 2(c).

**

# These items are included in “other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 #&&
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a)
profit or loss represents:

AER) (B 18) (&)

AEECRAEETENEZERERTEY
BRELNEIKEH -"FT-NFOA—RAZ
MUERETREE  UARENRBEEE S
FUFTROBEREEHEZHEERRME
REEE - TAIAADE BMERREZ®
ANEEENERAENCHINAEREE
E-NR_ZE-NFUA-HEREREREE
ER AEEEREFBAN)AERREREE
EFE MARBABERNREREER
KREMERTEEZHEM ZFABR -
EWERET  LBREHTTEY - BH
2(c) °

WEEBEFAGARBRRZ[EMEEMX]
A o

BERPHFAEH

REBRERTHAERE:

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OO0 GOV

2020 2019
—EBEHF —ET-NF
$'000 $'000
tEx  FBT
Current tax BIER B 1|
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEBNEHR
Provision for the year FEBE — 1,432
Over-provision in respect of prior years &t & [E 5 & # (410) —
(410) 1,432
Current tax BN HA B 1
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — PEGEFRS
Provision for the year FE A 14,461 7,617
14,051 9,049
Deferred tax EXLEHIE
Origination and reversal of B EZHES RBEOD
temporary differences 1,902 (2,158)
15,953 6,891

OOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOO OOOOOOOOOOOD OO0 OOV OOOOOOOOOOOO
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B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
E)

(CAE TR R)

150

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020, as the subsidiaries
of the Group in Hong Kong either sustain a loss for
taxation purpose or do not generate any assessable
income.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
the PRC's statutory income tax rate is 25%.

Among the branches of Ningbo AUX Property
Management Services Co., Ltd (“Ningbo AUX") in
the PRC, the Chengdu Branch was entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% under the Enterprise
Income Tax Preference Policies for the Western
Development. The directors are of the view that it
is highly probable that the Chengdu Branch will be
entitled to the same preferential tax rate and 15% is
adopted in estimating the tax provision for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Pursuant to the current rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"),
the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

At 31 March 2019,
had been recognised in respect of temporary
differences relating to undistributed profits of the
Company’s subsidiaries, which would be payable
on the distribution of these profits, as it had
been determined that these profits would not be
distributed in the foreseeable future. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, management reassess the
dividend policy of the Company’s subsidiaries and
consider that the retained profits of these subsidiaries
may be distributed in the foreseeable future.
Consequently, deferred tax liabilities of $4,251,000 for
temporary differences relating to undistributed profits
of subsidiaries are recognised as at 31 March 2020.

no deferred tax liabilities

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3

8

ma

(a)

S RPN EHE

REBERRPFHAEHE: (&)

EZDAVINE S i ab o= R N NI R R 7
HENMEHREER  E\EELMT
MERBKLA HBEE_T_TF
ZA=ZT - BLEFEXRRGEH
BHREAALBBNEHRIELEE -

BHE_ZT-NAF=A=t+—BI*F
B BENSHEGDRFAMGE
&R T i M #016.5% T & -

REBEFELEMEV L FEEAE
FIT 1S B0 11 & 1325% -

RERB D ERBER AR ([E
WRTHDRFPEZDAFHF - K
#HoABIREAAANFAENEERN
BHREERXBERZAISHRHER
MK -ZEEZRBHBH RAIRE T
EBZAREKERBRELRAI15%
NWEAEE-_ZE _TF=-RA=+—
HIEFEZREBEREE -

RERSHEENEBRELES (&
BRAZESDMBAFRAFOER
AEBEHBERZERAERANE
MATZH

RIE-NE=F=+—H A&EHE
BEREARARAMBERARZAD
K S5 F) 2 B 2= 5E T RE R FE SRR B
MEEHRBBAR REAREREDR
BTz TgRa] L RRIED
KeREBE2—ZE-_ZTF=RA=4+—
AILFE ERBEEFIEHART
MEBARMKEREK  WEENA
BARDRERZEWBE QRN RET R
oA RZZTEZZEF=A=+
—B - REBWE AR ERDIREF
NEREZBEEENECHREAEZA
4,251,000 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 &Z&ElEu=XPTNAEH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAREFEMNHERIRE
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: wmR(BR)EERNT:
S 2020 2019

—BRCRF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
TER FHET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAEFR S (BE) 29,166 (2,744)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before BREBRRF, (BB
taxation, calculated at the rates HEMRBGLZEBRE
applicable to profits/(losses) REEHA (BB H
in the jurisdictions concerned BHAMEFHE) 9,223 1,775
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses “F~A] F1 i 5 2 @9 i 75 52 & 1,797 2,472
Tax effect of non-taxable income FRBMBANT BB (2,194) (1,287)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not FAPHANTFERER
recognised in prior years but BARBAMIEBEEEN
utilised during the year W e = (7)
Tax effect of unrecognised RERGREZEN
temporary differences Mg E (374) 1,625
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERRBAHIBEIED
not recognised W e 4,651 4,050
Tax effect of profits subject to ZEXHEEERE 2
preferential tax rate in the PRC A ) T & (991) (1,737)
Tax effect of withholding tax on TRRAE R PR E
undistributed profits of NER DR & ) &
PRC subsidiaries Mg E 4,251 —
Over-provision in prior years MAFEBERE (410) —
Actual tax expense BERHERX 15,953 6,891

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI BEOBOOOEOOOOOOOOOOOEOOE OO
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 9 EEEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to section ZBEBELBUEH FE383MNIE A7 (FEE
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part BERFZER) RO FE 25 52 1 E 5 5
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about WA

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOE OO SOOI SOOI

2020
“ECEF
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’  allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
e R [k BIRGTE
ExHe k@A A R @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THER THER THER THER THER
Chairman and executive IRRHUTES
director
Zhang Jingguo KR — — — — _
Executive directors BTES
Zheng Jiang (b 1,998 - - - 1,998
Chan Hon Ki BREH — 1,625 - 18 1,643
Shen Guoying HEIES = = = = =
Independent non-executive BIUFHTEE
directors
Poon Chiu Kwok & IR 250 - - - 250
Bau Siu Fung g 250 = = = 250
Lou Aidong EER 250 = = = 250
Total @it 2,748 1,625 - 18 4,391

OOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OO OOV OOV OOOOOOOOOOO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9 EEHNE)

OOV OOBIBOOBOBDOOOOBOOBOOSOOBO OB OOOOOOOOOOBOBOBOODOOOIOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODIOOOOIOOOBOOO SOOI

2019
“E-NF

Salaries, Retirement

Directors’ allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total

& 28 B RINEE
EExHe Xl T4 3% @
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTET FTET TET AT TAT

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO GO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO

Chairman and executive @IERHTES

director
Zheng Jiang (resigned from ENI(RZF—NF

the position of chairman ZA—HEE

on 1 February 2019) TE) 1,998 — — — 1,998
Zhang Jingguo (appointed  REFE(R=ZF—NF

on 1 February 2019) —“A—BEZ) — - - - —
Executive directors HITEZ
Chan Hon Ki BRZH — 1,500 — 18 1,518
Chen Huajuan (resigned on  BRER(R=Z—NF

1 February 2019) —A—HEMT) — — — — —
Shen Guoying HEIES — — — — —
Independent non- BUFHTES

executive directors
Poon Chiu Kwok ERE 250 — — — 250
Bau Siu Fung L 250 — — — 250
Lou Aidong EFR 250 - - - 250
Total o 2,748 1,500 — 18 4,266

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
of them (2019: two) was a director whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of other three (2019: three) individuals are as
follows:

REHMAL

hEERFMALTIMBEAL(CZ—N
FMB)RES  HFH MM EHR I
B-Ht=2CT-AF: =ZR)ALH
FEHARmEmT

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD OO OO OO

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0!

2020 2019
—E-%8F -—T-hfF
$'000 $'000
FE FHT

OO0 COOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMEE 4,882 7,205
Discretionary bonuses 15 TE AT — —
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET & 50 73 54

4,955 7,259

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!

The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

OOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

ZER(CE-NAFZR)EeFTMHA LY
FHAEATHEN

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOO SOOI OBOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO

DOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO

2020 2019
—E_BF —E-NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A N ¢

OOOE OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T 1,500,000 7T 1 —
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2,000,000 7T 1 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T & 2,500,000 7T 1 —
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001} 7T &4,500,0007% 7T — 1

OOV OOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO BEBEEOOEOOEOOOOOOOOEOOE SOOI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
E)

(CAE TR R)

1

PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic profit/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic profit/(loss) per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $13,213,000 (2019:
loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $9,635,000) and the weighted
average number of 374,984,000 (2019: 374,984,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted profit/(loss) per share

The diluted profit/(loss) per share is the same as
basic profit/(loss) per share as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in existence during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

1

5350

(a)

(b)

A ()

SREBRN,(EE)
BREARF(EE) DERAAT
L3 A B AR R FE (R U4 113,213,000
BI(ZE—NTF  ARA) T @EERE
5 I R JE 1k &5 189,635,000 JT) ¢
UEFREEHTEBRMNEFY
% £1374,984,000/% (= & — h F:
374,984,000/%) st E AT 15 ©

SREBERN (HE)
BREERA,(FHE) ESRER
HwH L (EE)MER W ERE R
—E_EERN_TE-ANEFE=ZA=1
—HLEFEBMTFEEECHELE
A% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTERR)
N a
12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 PE BERXE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHR
DOV OOV O OO OO0 OOOOOOO OO OOOOO OO0
Properties Furniture,
leased for fixtures and Leasehold Motor  Construction in
own use equipment  improvements vehicles progress Total
FEAN KA RE HENE
HENE ES %% AE ERIB @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TET FTET TET FET FET FET
DOV OOV OOO OO OO OOOOO
Cost: BA:
At 31 March 2019 RZF-AF=A=+-A = 17,532 35,510 2,106 = 55,148
Impact on initial application of BRERERHBREED
HKFRS 16 (note) F6RNTE (M i) 1,144 = = = - 1,144
At 1 April 2019 RZE-N¥@A-H 1,144 17,532 35,510 2,106 = 56,292
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25) W B M B R (A a2 25) 7,339 - - — — 7,339
Additions NE 18,565 1,999 1,278 30 = 21,872
Disposals HE (738) (263) (773) (2,042) = (3,816)
Lease modification HEBT (585) - - — — (585)
Exchange adjustments [EHAE (19) (309) (18) (4) - (350)

156

At 31 March 2020 25,706 18,959 35,997 90 = 80,752

Accumulated depreciation and RARBERAEER:

impairment losses:
At 1 April 2019 RZE-AFMA—H - 12,706 32,598 931 - 46,235
Charge for the year EREX 11,665 2,078 3,300 279 - 17,322
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) B E B (A7 1206) 944 297 582 = = 1,823
Written back on disposals 4 B R (246) (167) (773) (1,165) = (2,351)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (2) (79) (18) (@ - (101)

At 31 March 2020

12,361 14,835 35,689 43 = 62,928

Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2020 RZE-FF=A=+-H 13,345 4,124 308 47 = 17,824
Cost: BA:
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-NFmA-A - 15,192 28910 2,110 178 46,390
Additions RE — 2,803 — — 6,440 9,243
Disposals He - (330) - — — (330)
Transfer from construction in progress HEERTR — — 6,618 — 6,618) —
Exchange adjustments EHAE — (133) (18) (4) — (155)
At 31 March 2019 — 17,532 35,510 2,106 — 55,148
Accumulated depreciation and RARERAESR:

impairment losses:
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N¥MA-A - 10,814 20,882 299 — 31,995
Charge for the year FRAX — 2,192 7476 632 — 10,300
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) REEENT120) — — 4,255 — — 4,255
Written back on disposals i A — (272) — — — (272)
Exchange adjustments — (28) (15) - - (43)
At 31 March 2019 — 12,706 32,598 931 — 46,235
Net book value: BREEE:
At 31 March 2019 R=Z2-A%F=ZA=+-A

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOV OOV OOV OO0

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Brit: AEBERALETEBHEERER
modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening BERVBHRERNEIRLER-F
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets —NFHEA—RBZ PESRETHE
relating to leases which were previously classified as IABEERTIRIE B B & ERIE 7R D
operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 2(c). BRECHEZHERIARERAESR

B o RMFE2) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥¥ BERR®E (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment losses (b) RIEEIE
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the operation HE_T_TF=A=+—HILF
of clubbing business and restaurant and bar B egmE% EBRBEPER
outlets continued to be loss-making. The segment LEBETBR -SME% £B
loss (i.e. adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, NBEFMESHBR-_Z_TFHND
depreciation and amortisation) of the clubbing HEEBIARGAE  BIE - TER
business and restaurant and bar outlets amounted BOH AT 2 B AR 19,776,00078
to $9,221,000 (2019: $12,932,000) in 2020 and the Te(=F — 19 112,932,000 7T) -
Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the AEBVEHEEEDE BE
relevant property, plant and equipment. As a result, NEEOTKE - Bt BE
impairment losses of $1,823,000 (2019: $4,255,000) /&5 181,823,000 TL(=Z & — J1 5 -
were recognised as “impairment losses on 4,255,000 ) ERFE A B R RN
property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated RRIME - - BERREREERE]
statement of profit or loss to reduce the carrying IR ZEME  BEREZEDE
amount of these property, plant and equipment E A E A r Y6 € 512,699,000 7T
to their recoverable amount of $12,699,000 (2019: —ZZE— 1 : 4,039,000 ) o AT U
$4,039,000). The estimates of recoverable amount DMt IREFRAEAER
were based on the value-in-use model, in which the AEHEPHNRESREBEN%EIZ%
cash flows were discounted using discount rates of MIFBRE(CE-AF:NRB)FER -
1% to 13% (2019: 11%). The discount rate used was FTRATIREY AT A R HEEE
pre-tax and reflected specific risks relating to the BRER BEREEMERBY
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and 5 E [ B
bar outlets.

(c) Right-of-use assets (c) EHAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use CRAEEERMEEEEEEN
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: RESFESTT :

31 March 1 April
2020 2019
—g-8F -—T-hF
=A=+—-H mA—A
$'000 $'000

FERT TET

Properties leased for own use, EBRNHEEMERITE

carried at depreciated cost B 2R %) B 13,345 1,144
Motor vehicles, carried at BRI E K AT R

depreciated cost — 564

13,345 1,708
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥¥ BERRE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Right-of-use assets (continued) (0 FEHREEEE)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases EERTHEIANEHEFTEN B
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: HETMOT

158

COOOOOVOOOOCOIBOOOOOOOOOIOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOGOIOOOOOBOGOOBOOOOOOOODOIOODCOOOOOOOOOOOIOODGBOOOOOOOOBOD GOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODOOOOOBODOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
(Note)

(H7at)

$'000 $'000
FHET FHET

OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOBROBOOBEOOOOOOOOOOO SO OO

Depreciation charge of right-of-use  # FAEEELIEBFEEER
assets by class of underlying asset: WITEER:

Properties leased for own use EEBERMNMEEYME 11,665 —
Motor vehicles RE = 251
11,665 251

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV LOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODCOVO OO0

Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a) ME&EZH B (K it7a) 713 27
Expense relating to short-term leases 52 HAT & & Hher N A HI R

and other leases with remaining —E-EF=-A=+—H

lease term ending on or before A ERNEE

31 March 2020 5,728 —
Total minimum lease payments for ERIRBEE B G EL

leases previously classified as FBI7TRDEREERERD

operating leases under HKAS 17 MEvmEHRENRBE — 23,145

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OO OOOOOOOODOOOO OO0

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Wit AEBEBERBEETEBHETRER
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening BERVBHREREIR L H —F—
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets NWFORA-—BzHBOEHRETHE
relating to leases which were previously classified as st RIEFE B G EFE7HR D
operating leases under HKAS 17. The depreciated carrying BRKEMNECHERRBRERAESE
amount of the finance lease assets which were previously EokRAFAME BERREREZR
included in property, plant and equipment is also identified BHEEENERMENTEHNAE
as a right-of-use asset. After initial recognition of right-of- AREEE -R-_ZE-—NAFHA-HER
use assets at 1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required MREREEER  K~EE(EREM
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead AN BERERAREEE  MIERRE
of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses RIEEBRNREREIERALEHER
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis TEAZHESAZ ZEREE - 1t
over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative EHET EREBTTED - B
information is not restated. See note 2(c). FE2(c) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 NE - BERKEE)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Right-of-use assets (continued) () EHAEEEE)
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were F AL A 4 & E 1L 1N018,565,000%8
$18,565,000. This amount primarily related to the e XN BFEEFFFHNERAN
capitalised lease payments payable under new or HHOTENNEREESAR -
renewed tenancy agreements.
Details of total cash outflows for leases and the HEEEENRSRLAEMRD R
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in HEBBERR BT 5 5 &M
notes 18(c) and 21, respectively. 18(c) }221 »
Properties leased for own use EEFHHEY ¥
The Group has obtained the right to use properties AEBCEREERZESFERE
as its premises for club, bars and restaurants and THENERN  AMEREER B
office premises through tenancy agreements. The EBREBOSHMARBRAE o I5F
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 HE—RVLTREME=F -
years.
One of the leases includes an option to renew the EfF—RHEERE —HBRERE &
lease for an additional period after the end of the HEAHEREREE —BER -
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks RATHERLT AEEMBEHE
to include such extension options exercisable by the IREFNUETHAEERTED
Group to provide operational flexibility. The Group BIHEERE NEMBEEFNE -
assesses at lease commencement date whether AEBREHEAFTHEESSAEM
it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension RAETHRAEAMEEERE WAKE
options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to REGEHMRABETHEEREER
exercise the extension options, the future lease #E - BB BRI A R R A BT R
payments during the extension periods are not THAHEEE 2R - ZERKMA
included in the measurement of lease liabilities. The ENRMECRRB R OT
potential exposure to these future lease payments is
summarised below:
T Potential future
lease payments
under extension
Lease options not
liabilities included in
recognised lease liabilities
(discounted) (undiscounted)
FHAHEEEN
EREERTER
BRANEESE RARREEFRK
(BBR) (REER)
$'000 $'000
FAET FH&ET
Premises for club — Hong Kong SHGEH — B F 15,194 16,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
e

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

160

(c)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Properties leased for own use (continued)

The Group was granted a rent concession for the
lease of the premises of the Group's club by the
landlord during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The rent concession was accounted for as lease
modification to reduce the lease liabilities and the
corresponding right-of-use assets by $585,000 at the
modification date.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B3¢ HiEI R 2 IR R A =)

12 V¥ BEKREE)

(c)

FRAEEEHE)
EEHAHEEYE (&)
AEBR-_ZE-ZEF=ZA=+—H
IFFEEEGAGNETIRER
CEE ZHECEEWEATREE
5] I R & 5T B 2 bA585,0005 7T T~
FAHEEERERERFERAEEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
E)

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A TR R)
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BEREE
VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV Property
management
contracts
and related
Customer customer
relationships relationships Total
MEEEEH
ki8R
BEERR BEEBRER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
FET FHET T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FWmOA—H 1,174 80,499 81,673
Exchange adjustments P& o F & — (4,631) (4,631)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NEF=A=1+—H 1,174 75,868 77,042
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—-NFMA—H 1,174 75,868 77,042
Exchange adjustments P& & 38 & — @4.911) @,911)
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-_ZEF=A=+—H 1,174 70,957 72,131
Accumulated amortisation: g 5N
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-N\FMNA—AH 1,174 7,379 8,553
Charge for the year FRNHXZ — 7,599 7,599
Exchange adjustments P& & 38 & — (436) (436)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hF=A=+—H 1,174 14,542 15,716
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFWHA—AH 1,174 14,542 15,716
Charge for the year FRMAXZ — 7,290 7,290
Exchange adjustments P& o F & — (1,136) (1,136)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZTF=A=1+—H 1,174 20,696 21,870
Net book value: BRTE R E:
At 31 March 2020 RZEBEZEF=A=+—H — 50,261 50,261
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=HA=+—H — 61,326 61,326
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AFEEHRBEERHAGEERRNITE
“depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated N#HIA -

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

14 GOODWILL

14 BHE

$'000
FHERT

BOOOOBIOOOEOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOIOGOOOOOOOIOOGOBONGOOOOOOOOOOBIOOOOGOOOOOIOOOOOCEIOONGIOOOGOOOOOGDOOOGOOOOOOOEOIOOOGIOOOEOOOOIOOOIBOOOOOOEOOOOOEIOOOED

Cost: B :

At 1 April 2018 RZZFE-N\FHEH—H 60,321
Exchange adjustments M 5 38 B (3,471)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZT-AF=A=+—HAEKZZT—-AFMNA—H 56,850
Additions (note 25) 1% TE(/W&ZE) 7,261
Exchange adjustments FE & A (3,679)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=A=+—H 60,432

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO O OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOT

Impairment test for CGU containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generated units
("CGU") identified as follows:

BEHEENRSELEMNNREDNR
FEOSEEAEEMHANSIREELEE
(RN

_2020 2019
—E-%F —TAF
$'000 $'000
TER TAET

Property management business MEEEER 53,171 56,850

Operation of restaurant and bar outlets KEEREKRBEPE 7,261 —
60,432 56,850

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined ReEFAEM 2T NESBIDENER

based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using estimated weighted average growth rates of 2%
to 3% (2019: 3%) which is not higher than the forecasts
included in industry reports. The growth rate used does
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using discount rates of 13% to 21% (2019: 21%).
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant segment.

Based on the results of the impairment testing of goodwill,
in the opinion of the directors, no impairment was
considered necessary as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
E)

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

15

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15 RAMBATRIMHNRKRE
TEREHNEAREELE BEREES

The following list contains only the particulars of

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated.

BEAFEZHBRBZHE - K=HIIHA

Sh PR BN ZER R EBR -

Proportion of ownership interest

iR 1 $:4:40]
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation/ issued and effective Held by the  Held by a
Name of company establishment paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity
BRAR rEEZ ARAH W8 A=
ARER HEMAY /BRI EHE BHRRAHE  ERER 5A BE TEZEH
OOV OO OO GOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
New Pride Corporate Limited BVI 101 shares 100% 100% — Investment holding
EBRAES 101/ 100% 100% — RAER
Cheerful Raise Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative service
BAERAR BA 1% 100% — 100% to group companies
MEBERARETHERRS
Club Kingdom The Central Group Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100% Holding of trademarks
B 15 100% — 100% HEFE
Sure Wise Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000,100 shares 100% — 100%  Operation of clubbing business
BREEBERAR BB 10,000,100 100% - 100% KEEMEDB
Success Deal Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Operation of clubbing business
B 15 100% — 100% KEEMER
Starry Chance Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EEARDA A 15 100% — 100% REER
Ningbo AUX* The PRC 5,000,000 shares 100% — 100%  Provision of property management
BIR AR q: 5,000,000 100% — 100% services
RENEERRE
Po Tai Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EREBRARAF B 18 100% — 100% REAER
Legend Management Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% — 100%  Operation of restaurant and bar
BiE 10,0008 100% - 100% outlets
BEEBERBEME
* Ningbo AUX is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC. * ERRRHD-—HARPEZIIEBELE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
"E

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

16

17

164

INVENTORIES 16 FE&
- . - 2020 2019
—F=-FF —FTNF
$'000 $000
TR THET

DOV OOOOOOO SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!

OOOE OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Food and beverages and other operating R¥ - i@k Hfv& AT -

items for club operations and restaurant EEMBEMNKEIEE

and bar outlets 927 3,520
OOV OOOOOOO SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO! OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as HRABAITHABENFTESEIN
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: NS

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO OO0 OOV

2020 2019
—2-%25 -—T-nF
$'000 $'000
FHRT FHT

OOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0! OO0 COOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEGFEMERMEE 12,594 18,791

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

OOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0!

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESZREMEKRFE
—2-FF —TNF
$'000 $'000
FHET FiT

DOV OOOOOOO SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!

OOOE OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Trade receivables, net of H 5 W RIE
loss allowance (note) MR BEE (A 2) 67,819 70,734
Deposits, prepayments and & BRNRIER
other receivables H b fE W 5K IE 24,513 27,407
92,332 98,141
Less: Non-current portion of prepayments  Ji : AT R BRI FERN ER 0 & = (100)
92,332 98,041

OOV OOOOOOO SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!

OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Note: At 31 March 2020, trade and other receivables of the Group Wit R-ZE-TF=ZA=+—H A£EEZESH
included amounts due from entities controlled by Mr. Zheng R L fth, 5 R TR B 4 FE M AN B 2 IR OAR R B
Jian Jiang, the Company’s controlling shareholder, of $4,371,000 BILERHNERREEAFEATEN
(2019: $1,615,000) and entities over which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang E 2 5E 55543710008 T (=T —
has significant influence, of $4,035,000 (2019: $2,526,000). The JL4F 1,615,000/ 7T) 54,035,000/ T (= F
amounts represent property management fees receivable arisen — N4 2,526,000 7T) c ZHRIERARAESE
in the ordinary course of business. BRETELEZREMEXERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EZRH#MEWKER

K18 (75 )

(CONTINUED)

AEEBHEN —FRIKROER AR
Mize  BNREMEMERFIENSE
54,226,000 7T (ZZ— 14 : 1,157,000

The amount of the Group's deposits, prepayments and
other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense after more than one year is $4,226,000 (2019:
$1,157,000), which mainly represent rental deposits for L) EXELERRAEBRAEMERE
office premises and restaurant of the Group (2019: rental EvHEZe (ZE-NF - AEEgR2
deposits for clubs of the Group). All of the other trade HE®RS) A EME S K E s & YK
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or HABEHR —FAKESRER AR

recognised as expense within one year.

All of the trade receivables are receivables from contracts

IBZEE SRR BRARBEYH RS

with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15. HRBISRAT ZREEF R 2 BIRK
E -
Ageing analysis IR e 20 AT

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis HEREHR FTAES K H M E KK
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other B E 5 U GRIE H B 5E HHA LA I H0 Bk JEHTE'
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss BEENERSTWOT

allowance, is as follows:

SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO OO SOOI

2020 2019
—2-%% —T-AF
$'000 $'000
T FET

SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OO BB OO

Within 1 month — AR 29,954 24,897
Over 1 month to 3 months Be—EAz=M@A 8,821 11,978
Over 3 months to 6 months BE=EAZEEA 6,249 8,666
Over 6 months to 1 year @ ANEAE—F 11,422 11,949
Over 1 year —F A F 11,373 13,244

67,819 70,734

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OOV OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

AEEFEEBRRRESREES IEEEE’J
EERRZE—TFBHRMFE26(0)

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 26(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HReRHRESZEYURHMBEER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER
(a) The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as (a) BLRREEEYINUMT:
follows:

OOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO O OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0O OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 GOV

2020 2019
—2-%25 —T-nF
$'000 $'000
FHRT T

OOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO O OOV OOOOOOOOOO0!

OO0 COOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

Deposits with banks and cash in hand $R{TEX L FHERE 209,321 197,294
Restricted bank deposits (note (i)) SBR B IR 1T 17 AT ) (2,586) (2,439)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FeRaenERNBREER

consolidated cash flow statement BeEEY 206,735 194,855

OOV OO OOOODOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODODOOOOOOO B EOOBIBOBOIOOOOOOBOBOODODIOOOOIOOOOOO

OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Notes: B it -

(i) Restricted bank deposits represent the cash collected from (i) ZRERITEFREREDEETS ¥ F
property occupants/owners for the repair and maintenance WRRE  FRENRRHGFEZ#
fund maintained by Ningbo AUX. ERREES -

(ii) Included in deposits with banks and cash in hand of the (ii) RZZEZZEF=A=+—H XEEH
Group, $203,176,000 (2019: $159,505,000) are denominated $RITTF 3R M F BRI £ 83E203,176,000
in Renminbi at 31 March 2020. Renminbi is not a freely Bt (ZZT— N4 ¢ 159,505,000/8 7T)
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of NARKEGE ARETEAEHRL
mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed B EE  MESETHBEREEHRA
by the Government of the PRC. R EAR LB BT IMNERS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
INFORMATION

OTHER CASH FLOW
(CONTINUED)

18 RERASFEE/YUREMBRSR

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash

(b)

METDRELEEENHEK

TRHAMAEEREETDAELEN
BEZE  EERSNIREE -
METHFELANABRRERE
EREARRERERERNAKHE
RARERERANBERELRY
PFTEENBRESRENZTAR -

flows from financing activities.

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

controlling
shareholder and
amount due to

~ Loan from the

the controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REERBRRERR
AR RAE HEAE st
$'000 $'000 $'000
FET FAET FET
(Note 22) (Note 21)
(B 5t22) (Bi&t21)
SOOI SOOI OO OO SO0
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-hE=B=+—-H 116,912 618 117,530
Impact on initial application of BRERBANBREENE6R
HKFRS 16 (note) wEWZ) — 1,144 1,144
At 1 April 2019 R-B-AEMA—A 116912 1762 118,674
Changes from financing cash flows: BRERESRED:
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREeNAE S — (5,022) (5,022)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERENF SRS — (713) (713)

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Interest expenses (note 7(a) R 8 S (B3t 7a) 2,243 713 2,956
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into ~ FRREFT S FHAE R ER ML NG

new leases and renewal of leases during the HEARE

year — 19,157 19,157
Increase in lease liabilities from acquisition HEmEMNHERRE

(note 25) (it 3t25) — 7,348 7,348
Decrease in lease liabilities from lease HHEETmMALNEEEE

modification (note 12(c)) (Bt #12(c) — (585) (585)
Decrease in lease liabilities from termination of EMEAXMKIEMRIOAERE

lease agreement — (511) (511)
Total other changes Hth 2B RE 2,243 26,122 28,365
At 31 March 2020 R-ZEB-ZF=ZA=+—H 111,600 22,129 133,729
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

BERBASEFEYURE
BER (A

ﬂij, IE 7 /Jlb

(b) BMEFDRELREBEHNYKRA)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the M AEEERRBEEITEBEIERNER
modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening BAEUBREENFCRITE =T

balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 2(c).

NFUA—RZ P& HRETHE
AL ERIRIBEE B & H LR F175RD
BERgefErHeEwRRiEER
& - R E2) -

BOOOBOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOIOOOOOIOOOOOIOO GOGIPOOEOOIOOGOOONGOGOOOOGBOOOOOOOO OGP GOGOGOONOOGOOOOODD

Loan from the

controlling
shareholder
and amount
due to the
controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REERRR
ERREGER
BRHKE HESE et
$'000 $'000 $'000
TExT FET FET
(Note 22) (Note 21)
(B 7222) (WEZU
At 1 April 2018 R-B-NEWmA-A 123,845 779 124,624
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRESD:
Capital element of finance lease payments BMERERE 2 AL I D — (161 (161)
Interest element of finance lease payments @& T8 & 338 2 7| B & 5 — (27) (27)
Interest on loan from the controlling BERNREERBRRER E’Jﬂ =
shareholder paid (2,127) — (2127)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSREBHEH (2,127) (188) (2,315)
Exchange adjustments ELRAE (7,125) — (7,125)
Other changes: Hitt2®
Finance charges on obligations under MERESAZECZHEER
finance lease (note 7(a)) (/1 ##7(a) — 27 27
Interest on loan from the controlling REZERKRRERZFE
shareholder (note 7(a) (K15t 7(a) 2,319 — 2,319
Total other changes HmEEHpE 2,319 27 2,346
At 31 March 2019 R-E-RE=R=+—-H 116,912 618 117,530

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOO OO OO OO O OO OO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HReRHRESZEYURHMBEER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER(#E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEBRSRHHAEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for REEFABRERERTNEER
leases comprise the following: BATEIE:
2020 2019
—s-8F —Th%
$'000 $'000
FHET FAET
(Note)
(K1 7%)
Within operating cash flows EEEHRESRA (9,652) (23,145)
Within financing cash flows ERERSRA (5,735) (188)
(15,387) (23,333)
Note: As explained in the note to the consolidated cash flow Mat: BMEREREBTWBRM T - KW
statement, the adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces a change BEUBREEBREREZS
in classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid on FEAHEEzBEERED REXE
leases. The comparative amounts have not been restated. BohBREBTITES -
These amounts relate to the following: ZERHEETIEIBERR -
2020 2019
—F-%FF —FTNF
$'000 $'000
TET FAT
Lease rentals paid B2NHEE 15,387 23,333

BOOBOBOOBOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOGOOOOOOIOOOOOOOOOOIOOOOOOOOOO!

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOBOOO SOOI OOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOBOOOOOOOOOD OO OO OO

BEZREMENRE
2020 2019
—F=-FF —FTNF
$'000 $000
TR THET

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI SOOE OO

Trade creditors B 5 ENM A 22,335 28,918

Deposits received from property occupants/ RE#EFEF,/
owners EFWHRES 19,104 14,933
Receipts on behalf of utilities companies REAREEQAFTER 15,930 13,664
Amounts due to related parties P&~ A B 5 kIR 2,137 1,486
Provision for onerous contract (note) EEE 'ﬂ?éﬁ(/f/fﬁt) — 3,924
Other payables and accrued charges Hh ERT5RIE R BB A 41,181 41,667
100,687 104,592

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OODO OO0 OOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Note: The provision was made for the onerous tenancy agreement for
one of the clubs in Hong Kong, taking into consideration the
performance of the relevant club. Under this tenancy agreement,
the unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations have exceeded
the economic benefits expected to be received. Consequently, a
provision for onerous contract was recognised in profit or loss in
the prior year. The balance has been fully settled in the current

year.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The amounts due to related parties represent balances
due to entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the
Company's controlling shareholder, which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMBBRRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 E3

Hftb F& 4 KR ()

(CONTINUED)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis BHEREHR  FAZES K EMENKIE
of trade creditors (which are included in trade and other MEZEMNRIBZREZHBEMERR ST
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: N
2020 2019
—E-EHF — N
$'000 $'000
TET FHET
Within 3 months =@mAR 12,469 18,537
Over 3 months to 6 months HEB=EAZ~EA 6,269 3,336
Over 6 months to 1 year BANERE—F 2,307 3,555
Over 1 year —FMNE 1,290 3,490
22,335 28,918
20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20 EHEE
2020 2019
—E-EHF — N
$'000 $'000
TET FHET
Billing in advance of performance T8 U B 49 k1B 45,349 53,058
The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended 31 Eki_ Z_EF-_A=T—RHILFE"
March 2020 that was included in the contract liabilities ZE-NFHEA—HFAA ']E\T,\,:zﬁﬁﬁ’]
balance at 1 April 2019 was $53,058,000. B % 3R W % & 58 /353,058,000 7T ©

Annual Report 2020 £

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

21

LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HE&E
TRERAEBENE AR A RS RN
BEZEEBMBREELE165 2 BEN
REaBEgTANE:

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to HKFRS 16:

QOO0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOCOOB OO OOO SOOI OO OOOOOOO OO OOOOOOO OO OO

31 March 2020 1 April 2019 (Note) 31 March 2019 (Note)
—E-EE=F=+-H ZZT-NFNA—-B(#iF) —E—NE=R=+—8WH )

Present Present Present
value of value of value of
the lease Total lease the lease  Total lease the lease Total lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
REHEE HEMK HEHE HEMK =ERE HEMRK
NREE B NHRE ek NHRRE BE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TR TERT FAT FTHET FAL FHL
QOO0 OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OO OO OO SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Within 1 year —FR 21,054 21,330 1,014 1,151 168 189
After 1 year but —FEREZFR
within 2 years 1,075 1,091 473 499 175 189
After 2 years but Z—FEERFR
within 5 years = = 275 282 275 282
1,075 1,091 748 781 450 471
22,129 22,421 1,762 1,932 618 660

OOOOOOOOOOOOV OO OOOOOOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

Less: total future

R RF B

interest THBE
expenses (292) (170) (42)
Present value of HE&BEIHRE
lease liabilities 22,129 1,762 618

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1

April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which

were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

These liabilities have been aggregated with the brought forward

balances relating to leases previously classified as finance leases.

Comparative information as at 31 March 2019 has not been

restated and relates solely to leases previously classified as finance

leases. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS

16 are set out in note 2(c).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

22 LOAN FROM THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER AND AMOUNT DUE TO THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

22

The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 2% per annum
and repayable in August 2022.

The amount due to the controlling shareholder,
representing the interest payable, is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable within one year.
23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

23

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

REEZRRRERRENEZERR
RE

ZERBERR  RFEF K2 B
RZZE-_—_FNAREE-
FE IR B RRIBGEEM R B) & &K
W BBUTR—FREE-

REMBRARARPNFER

(a) HEMBMRRRPHNEHBEALE:

2020 2019
—E-TE —T-NF
$'000 $'000
FHET TET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABBNEHEE
for the year —_ 1,432
Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax F AR BT EMEH
for the year B 14,461 7,617
Provisional PRC Corporate Income Tax [RENEEE- el
paid FTig®t (7,244) (2,070)
7,217 5,547
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEEBENEHE
provision relating to prior years 1 s B 1,022 —
8,239 6,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ASR R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

e

7 N =1

23

174

INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:

(i)

Movement of each component of deferred

tax (assets)/liabilities

The components of deferred tax (assets)/
liabilities recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial

position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

23

REMBRRRPOFTED(F

(b BERAEEBE(EE) EE
(i) EEZHEEE) BEEHLRL
7 H9 # B
RER B IS HIOR R A HE R AR
ERE(EE) BEAKES
ERERANESHIT:

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0

Depreciation
(in excess
of)/less than
the related
depreciation
allowances
(B4,
SRERTE
BENTE
$'000

TET

Tax
losses

BB
BB
$'000
TAT

Impairment

losses Amortisation Undistributed

on trade Accrued of intangible profits of
receivables expenses assets  subsidiaries Total

EHERFUEN st EVEE )|
HEER ER e RAMEF @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TR TER TER TEx TiEx

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0

Deferred tax ELHERE:

arising from:
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\EMA—H (4) (430) (883) (181) 18,280 — 16,782
(Credited)/ REZERGIA) /K

charged to

profit or loss 2 430 (773) 87 (1,900) — (2,158)
Exchange ERAE

adjustments — — 52 10 (1,049) — (987)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—15F

and 1 April ZAZ+-8k

2019 —T-AMA—H (6) — (1,604) (84) 15,331 — 13,637
Charged/ REHEPMGR/GIA)

(credited) to

profit or loss 6 — (488) (45) (1,822) 4,251 1,902
Exchange EHAE

adjustments — — "7 7 (944) — (820)
At 31 March 2020 R-Z-Z&=A=+—H — — (1,975) (122) 12,565 4,251 14,719
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

=
e

23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 SZEHBRARFIFEH (&
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (by ERABELEHB(EE) BE#AE)
(continued)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (ii) A& R BN KR

statement of financial position

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OOV OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

2020 2019
—F=-%FF —FTNF
$'000 $000
FEx TET

DOCOOIOVOOVOOOOVOVOOOOCOIBOOOOOOOVOIOOOOOBOOOOBOOOOIOOOOOOOOIOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOs

OOOOOOOOOOOOOIBOOOOOOO

Net deferred tax assets recognised Wira BB AR AERA

in the consolidated statement of e RV IR IE B 1E
financial position BE TR (2,097) (1,694)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RéR& F MR R KA
in the consolidated statement of e RV IR IE B 1E
financial position BEFE 16,816 15,331
14,719 13,637
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) XAERELEHEEE

The Group has not recognised deferred tax AEBUTESRRFREBERERY
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and ¥ BELREBEENERKES
temporary differences arising from property, plant 5 51118,386,000 T (ZF — ML &
and equipment amounting to $118,386,000 (2019: 88,130,000/ JT) }%29,964,000% JT
$88,130,000) and $29,964,000 (2019: $23,845,000) = — L4 : 23,845,000/ JT) #E R
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable REHEEE  REARMEBERT
profits against which such losses and temporary A BERB MBI FEZFIEL
differences can be utilised will be available in the RERZEZFESHAMEN - BRIER
relevant entities. The tax losses do not expire under IBE MEBBEIGER -

current tax legislation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24 BEXRfEE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEZEARBLEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REEFEEZNZEAKIDH
closing balances of each component of the Group's NMEMREROERENGEEER
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated BEEK FYNEFRPBEERRFE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the IR ARE D EEE BRI
changes in the Company’s individual components of Ik

equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

The Company AT
QOO OO OOV OO OOV OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 O OO QOO0
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
B B4R E RitER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER FTER TERT TER
QOO OO OOV OO OOV OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO OO0 O OO QOO0
Balance at 1 April 2018 R-E-NENA-BNEE 3,750 177,000 (36,695) 144,055
Change in equity for the year ended BZ-ZT-NF=ZA=+—-8
31 March 2019: LEERELD:
Loss and total comprehensive income FNBERZENESE
for the year — — (40,098) (40,098)
Balance at 31 March 2019 and RZB-AEZA=Z+-HER
1 April 2019 —E-NEMB-ANES 3,750 177,000 (76,793) 103,957
Change in equity for the year ended HBZ-Z-ZF=A=+-H
31 March 2020: tEEREED:
Loss and total comprehensive income FANBERZENLHE
for the year — — (14,726) (14,726)
Balance at 31 March 2020 R-ZB-BF=F=+-8
& & 3,750 177,000 (91,519) 89,231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 24 BEXRNG#HE(E
(b) Share capital (b) M
—F=%F —TNF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
KRS EE &% 1D 2R ok
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
T B TET T FAET
Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of $0.01 & & {E0.01
each AITHMEEK 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

Ordinary shares, issued E&ER > B#&1T

and fully paid: R#R:
At the beginning and the R & ¥l & F K

end of the year 374,984 3,750 374,984 3,750
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TR A AR BEWERTR SRS
dividends as declared from time to time and are e WEERARAAREG LU
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the R—FETRR - REARBFERE
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with EME AT BRMLRE -

regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves () RENHEERE®
(i)  Share premium (i) KREGEE

The share premium represents the difference DR ERARFRGEE R
between the nominal value of the shares of BATARR ARG WEE FT 15 R
the Company and proceeds received from the EHHZEZRFE  BEFREHS QA
issuance of shares of the Company. Under the A ARRER IR D R B BR A
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium DIKTARRARIE - MHEREE
account of the Company is distributable to the BEORKREERE  ARA
shareholders of the Company provided that BEENR—BEBRERE
immediately following the date on which the RS ER -

dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of the business.
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B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
E)

(CAE TR R)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

178

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the cash paid
for the acquisition of subsidiaries contributed
by the former controlling shareholder in
September 2010.

(iii) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(t).

(iv) Statutory reserve

The Articles of Association of Ningbo AUX
require the appropriation of 10% of its profit
after tax each year, based on its statutory
audited financial statements, to the statutory
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital of Ningbo AUX. The
statutory reserve may be capitalised as the
paid-in capital of Ningbo AUX.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were $85,481,000
(2019: $100,207,000).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
$Nil).

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR

24 BEXRNG#HE(E
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

25

()

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group's strategy was to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and
ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligations. The ratio of the Group's total
liabilities over its total assets at 31 March 2020 and 1
April 2019, the date of transition to HKFRS 16, were
70% and 70%, respectively (31 March 2019: 70%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 30 April 2019, Po Tai Holdings Limited, a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire equity

interest in Mini Club at a consideration of $6,500,000.

The purchase consideration has been settled in cash.
Acquisition of Mini Club would enable the Group to

diversify the revenue stream in food and beverage industry
and its investment portfolio.
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180

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 25 WEMIE LT (&
The fair value of net identifiable liabilities assumed and FiAE#ZNEEFECATERRSE
the goodwill arising from the transaction are as follows: AEREENT:
at date of
acquisition
RUBEEEZ
A¥E
$'000
TFHET
Property, plant and equipment WM BMEREZE 7,339
Inventories EY 157
Trade and other receivables B 5N E A E IR TE 1,184
Bank overdrafts RITEX (501)
Trade and other payables B 5K E M E A (1,592)
Lease liabilities HMEBE (7,348)
Net identifiable assets acquired PRAHE R B BB F R (761)
Goodwill EES 7,261
6,500

VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OOV OOOO QOO0

Analysis of net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents HBEMIn ClubH RS ER2FEMER
in respect of the acquisition of Mini Club is as follows: R FEZOMEAT:
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SO OO SOOI OO
$'000
FET

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SO OO SOOI OO

Cash consideration BeRE 6,500
Bank overdrafts assumed FrAERITEX 501

7,001
Less: Prepaid consideration in prior year BB FFEEBENRE (100)
Net cash outflow Wem b F5 6,901

VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OOV OOOO QOO0

The above goodwill is attributable to the benefit of Lt B R P TE HA A9 15 (R Ak PE - Ui aS 0
expected synergies, revenue growth and the assembled & & Mini Club®) A 71 E X8 & # 2K &) 71
workforce of Mini Club. e
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The credit risk on restricted/pledged bank balances
and cash and bank balances is limited as the
counterparties are banks with sound credit standing.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, as
where there is credit exposure to the Group, it is
spread over a diversified portfolio of customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables in connection with operation of
clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets
is limited because the counterparties are major
financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

26
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

182

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of property management services,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
corporate customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers, except for the
deposits received from the property occupants/
owners to secure property management services
provided by the Group.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B3¢ HiEI R 2 IR R A =)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 B EMEELRESMIAEANATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) ESEKE(E)
The following table provides information about the TREJNERAEERER ZEER
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade BRARESEKKRIE BREEE
receivables: BRER:
2020
i
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHERE AR B BEEE
% $'000 $'000
% TERT TET

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOO OO OO OO0 OOOOOOBOOOOOOOO OISO OISO OIS

Property management E N1

Less than 1 year past due BHOR—F 0%-4% 58,594 2,152

1-2 years past due BH—EWF 19% 9,390 1,750

2-3 years past due BHME=F 30% 4,608 1,403

3-4 years past due WMEI= Z N 72% 1,874 1,347

More than 4 years past due 8 H R B I A 100% 1,425 1,425
75,891 8,077

Operation of clubbing business and A& EF « EER

restaurant and bar outlets B RE T T

Current (not past due) BVER (K@) 0% 5 —

75,896 8,077

VOOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVO OOV OO OOV OOV OOV OOV OOOOOOCOOOOOOOCOOOOOOOC OO OO OO OO0
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

BHEERMEEREMIAQNTE

(#&)

(a)

FERR A
EZERNEE)

T
—E-NF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
HHEEX BERHE(E BREERA
% $'000 $'000
% FET FET
Property management VEEE
Less than 1 year past due BHON—F 4% 58,528 2,054
1-2 years past due B —EMEF 1% 10,373 1,096
2-3 years past due BHME=F 22% 3,987 864
3-4 years past due BMEB=-FENF 49% 1,652 808
More than 4 years past due B HA R B A 100% 951 951
75,491 5,773
Operation of clubbing business and A& A EF  EER
restaurant and bar outlets B RE T T
Current (not past due) B A3 (R H) 0% 1,016 —
76,507 5,773

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 ¥ EKBEEREMIAAFTE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) ESEKE(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FRNEBREZERNEBEER
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEsmT:

DOV OO OOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO

2020 2019
—2-%F —TNF
$'000 $000
TR THET

OOV OOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!

OOOE OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

At the beginning of the year R4 5,773 3,675
Impairment loss recognised BERZBIEESIE 2,751 2,314
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 2 (447) (216)
At the end of the year RER 8,077 5,773

COOOOOVOIVOOOOBOOOOOOOOOIOOOOCOOOOOGOIBOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOIDOOOOOIOOOOOOD

OOODOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD

(b) Liquidity risk (by REBELER

Individual operating entities within the Group AEBENENKEERBEERRZ
are responsible for their own cash management, ReER PERESRNESRKR
including the short term investment of cash EREXRERENTEBRHRET R
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected M i 15 7R R 3R B TE A SRR KT R
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent AlIEERARIESE I E - AEH
company's board when the borrowings exceed HMBEAREHREERBESFT K
certain predetermined levels of authority. The NHEREFTENR S HFHERKA
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity FTESRBBIITERR R Z MR
requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient HEERE MEREBRREARS
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines BeHmko

of funding from major financial institutions or
controlling shareholder to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

26 BIEREENREMIAAFRE

(#&)

(b)

REE SRR E)
TRITAEBEeRmBENREH
ROHRTEQIHBER - L HRIE
BRRFTRRERE(BEREHF
(k> mEBEZE  AIRERSHR
B9 BN EA A ) St & B F B R K AR
SEAKERNTNKERHAME
H

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV O OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOE OOOOOODOOD SOOI

2020
—E-Ef
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BNRTBRBEERE
Within More than 1  More than
1 year year but less 2 years but Carrying
or on than less than amount at 31
demand 2 years 5 years Total March 2020
R-Z-ZH
—Erg —FHE MENE =B=+-—H
RER EmREUT EREUT st AREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THERT TR THERT THERT TERT
Trade and other payables BSREMEMFE 100,687 - — 100,687 100,687
Lease liabilities (note) HEREGHZ) 21,330 1,091 - 22,421 22,129
Amount due to the controlling & U2 A% % R 5118
shareholder 2,435 - - 2,435 2,435
Loan from the controlling REZERBREER
shareholder 2,183 2,183 109,980 114,346 109,165
126,635 3,274 109,980 239,889 234,416
DOOOOODOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OGO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO GO OSSO OO SO OO OO OO
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 B EMEELRESMIAEANATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELRAK(E)
SOOI GO OOOOOOO SO0
2019
—E-NF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARTRESR
Within -~ More than T More than 2
1 year year but years but less Carrying
or on less than than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years Total 31 March 2019
RZZE-NE
—ERY —FNUE MENU L =A=+-—H
BRER EMFEUT  BRFUT @it REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TERT FiET FTET FTET TAET
Trade and other payables B L EMENTE 104,592 — — 104,592 104,592
Lease liabilities relating to EARBEEBGHE
leases previously classified AR DER
under HKAS 17 as finance KEMERMEE
leases FBsHERRE 189 189 282 660 618
Amount due to the controlling  f& U #%2 8% B% & 5% 18
shareholder 192 — — 192 192
Loan from the controlling REEBRBREER
shareholder 2,334 2,334 119,925 124,593 116,720
107,307 2,523 120,207 230,037 222,122
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the M AEEEBRBEETEBEIERER
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening BEMBREENE16F L H T —
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities NFEOA—BZRANERETHE -
relating to leases which were previously classified as AR ERIRBEE G ERET7RD
operating leases under HKAS 17. Lease liabilities include BREEHEZHERARIEES
amounts recognised at the date of transition to HKFRS & - HEEERERBEZRENH
16 in respect of leases previously classified as operating WEEAE165E B AR ERRIBEERE
leases under HKAS 17 and amounts relating to new leases S EAETROARKEHENE
entered into during the year. Under this approach, the B MR R A R A AT AL # BT AR
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). SEHEEANSE - REZHE  LERE

HTTEI - R -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

HHEREERERMIAQATE
(#&)

(c) Interest rate risk () FEEp
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future MERBRESHITIAZAFERE
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate KRR RERETISMNEFFHHIR
because of changes in market interest rates. The REBEER - AEBEFEEREE
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from loan EEARKMF2EEREZERR
from the controlling shareholder as disclosed in REXR LEBBITHERSAE
note 22. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the EmEmEATFEMNERR KNEEIT
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group does mERAeRMITET A RRERR -
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the TRHEIIAEBEEEERNF X
interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as (D
monitored by management is set out in the following
table.
2020 2019
—ECRF —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate $'000 rate $'000
BRA= FHET BB A = FAET
Fixed rate borrowings: BEERREE:
Lease liabilities (note) HEBE
(H1#2) 3.5%-6.5% 22,129 3.8% 618
Loan from the controlling 2R B 1% % % &
shareholder =79 2.0% 109,165 2.0% 116,720
Total borrowings A E 131,294 117,338

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c).

A change in interest rate would not impact the
Group's profit/loss and equity as the Group does not
hold any fixed rate instruments which are measured
at fair value. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has
been presented.

1 88 AUX International Holdings Limited / B % S BB Z BB R AR
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (d)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations

HHEREERERMIAQATE

&% E

RSB AR SNE B R E Z R A A
SNEFHEM BN MR & - B
RGMEREEZNREEAIINZ
EREE BERRABNEEE

to which the transactions relate. The currency giving ERHARE o
rise to this risk is Renminbi.
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (i) EEEERERE

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), translated using
the spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

TRAMRNEER RS HRA
MR AR ERIGE BRI
SIS BERHENCHEREE
FEEMELENEERR - B
2HEN - BEREBRAFE
HeREER B E BB T (18
TR - EEINE 2 B
BRERAEBZNEHME
EREBITAHE -

DOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO

Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in HKD)
TE [ S 5 R B (DA 3 T R R)

2020 2019
—E_BF —E-NF
Renminbi Renminbi
AR AR
$'000 $'000
FHET FAT

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOBOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO!

OOOE OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Cash at bank and in hand RITHEREFHERS 14 73
Loan from the controlling shareholder 2k 512 i% 3% 3 & 3% (109,165) (116,720)
Net exposure arising from recognised EHREE N AE

assets and liabilities FMELZRRFE (109,151) (116,647)

OOOOOVOOOOCOIVOGOOOOOOIOOOOOOOOOOVOOOOCOIBOGOOOOCOIOOOOBOOOOOBOGOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD SOBBOCOEBOCO OGOV CBOD OOOGOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 B EKREELRLSMIAEANATHE

190

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ERE)

(iij)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEZH

The following table indicates the instantaneous TRIRRFZ B H A @ g &
change in the Group's profit/loss after tax HIRFTE - WRREBHRAE
(and accumulated losses) that would arise if S E MR E KN RE A E RN Z
foreign exchange rate to which the Group has El HIREE  REBKRBIEE
significant exposure at the end of the reporting #H (R RTER) e E AN
period had changed at that date, assuming all & -

other risk variables remained constant.

COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

2020 2019

b g 32 —Z-NEF
(Decrease)/ (Increase)/
increase in profit decrease in loss
after tax after tax
Increase/ and (increase)/ Increase/ and (increase)/
(decrease) in decrease in (decrease) in decrease in
foreign exchange accumulated  foreign exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
BB R BREEER
H4) /& (gm,/ mo Rk
HEE =X - 3 MEER ZEEEOEM,/
E#/(FH) W/ (Em) EH/(TRE) B
$'000 $'000
THERT TER

COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV OOOOO COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOOO0

Renminbi AR 10% (10,915) 10% (11,665)
(10)% 10,915 (10)% 11,665

COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0

Results of the analysis as presented in the ERAESOTEREREYE
above table represent an aggregation of B A S ETh e B’ 5 E Y
the instantaneous effects on each of the AEEEBBRTIEIER KRG
Group entities’ profit/loss after tax and BB R W E HA R IR 1T IE & 5
accumulated losses measured in the respective BRATHEENRZE -

functional currencies, translated into HKD at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
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26

27

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 BB EKBREELRSBMIAEATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E®EkE)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) BEE T (4E)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the BREINMBRRINEER 2 &
change in foreign exchange rates had HBEARNEHABAKERNR
been applied to re-measure those financial SHMRFESHBEERINEE b2
instruments held by the Group which expose WEemIA BEEEBNUE
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of ERSERZREEBFHEZ
the reporting period, including inter-company FERT R W R IA (JAF) ° 5
payables and receivables within the Group, if DIRNEECNEFINCIE 3l
any, which are denominated in a currency other RBERANERZ 2GR
than the functional currencies of the lender or EEZER WOMR_T—
the borrower. The analysis excludes differences NFERREELET -

that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group's presentation currency. The analysis
has been performed on the same basis for

2019.
(e) Fair value measurement (e) ADFHEFE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial RIZE_ZEFRZZB-NF=A=+
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are —B - A& E R KA O i KRS
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 RzemMIARMERERFEL
March 2020 and 2019. mBaARER -
COMMITMENTS 27 EiE
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease RZEBE-—NF=ZA=1+—8 " RETAH
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were HAEHANNENRRREHSABEN
payable as follows: K

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV O OO0
.
Properties
.
$'000
THETT

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV O OO0

Within 1 year —F R 14,569
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHERFEA 874
15,443

BOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODOOOOOOOOOOODODODOOOOOOOOBOOOOBOBIBOOOOOOBBODIBOIOOOOOOBOBBOBOOOBOIDOOOOBOBIBOBOBOIOOOOOOBOBOOOOBOOOIOOOOD SOOI OOOOOOOOOOOOOS
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=
E)

FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

27

28

192

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 April 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases (see note
2(c)). From 1 April 2019 onwards, future lease payments
are recognised as lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(h), and the details regarding the
Group's future lease payments are disclosed in note 21.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors

as disclosed in note 9 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 10, are as follows:

27

28

i (F)

REBAZEBIB LA BB LR E17
WO ARKEHEMBEME 2AMEA -
REBRAKLETENLZEREREE
B sR SR E1657 o RIFUL T X - A&
EH_—_Z—NFHNA—BZHNEHRETT
AR URBEZSEHERRATEAR
(BM3E20) - AT A EMA—H# -
BB 20 TH 2 K - RRBEMNK
ERGAHBMRRERAEREHEERE
MEBAEBAKRBAENRZFBRNW
E21H FE o

EXBBLEXS

TEEEEBAESTMH
FEERRBAEBNHM (/XN T
MsToR BB AR A E S LM EE10
BN &S HMESOHIE) W
T

(a)

VOOV OOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOV OOOO GOV

2020 2019
—2-%F —TNF
$'000 $'000
TER TET

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOLOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOODCOVO OO0

HelkHEMEHRESR

Salaries and other short-term employee

benefits =gl 12,298 16,047
Retirement scheme contributions RARET &I 50 148 208
12,446 16,255

OOV OO OO BEOBOOOEOOEOOOOOOOOEOOE OO

Fmamat ATE T AR M5
7(b)) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

Hong Kong dollars)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EABE IR Z (&

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) HEMBHLIZRS
In addition to the transactions and balances BABEHREREMIBOAEEZR
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, SN  NEE BT EST
the Group entered into the following material related THERRS:

(c)

party transactions:

2020 2019
—2-%2F -—T-nF
$'000 $'000
FHRT FHT

Property management services income REBB T2 MEER

from related parties AR 75 U A 64,947 54,524
Repair and maintenance expenses for BN — R

motor vehicles payable/paid to a MEREN EERX

related party 430 221

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above RAAREZEERAR LR HTHERE
transactions were carried out on normal commercial ¥ BRRIE BB EMRKETL

terms and in the ordinary course of business.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to () HBEEXZEFENLTRAZER
connected transactions i

The property management services income from E X280 BERE B 5 2
related parties disclosed in note 28(b) includes W E B RBW AR - 53,747,000 /&
$53,747,000 (2019: $49,611,000) which constituted TT(ZF — L5 : 49,611,000 7T) 18
continuing connected transactions as defined in K ETRAEMATZRRRE 2 FEH
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures ERG o FHRAIEUATREREK
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules BOCRESERERIHEFRERS]
are provided in section “Continuing Connected —Ei 5 .

Transactions” of the Report of the directors.

In addition, repair and maintenance expenses for g oh - E XX RE28b) T BB 2 &
motor vehicles paid/payable to a related party BN — 2T RBREERE
disclosed in note 28(b) constituted connected ERYER ETRAEVAEMATE
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the ZHER S A BRZEFERS
Listing Rules but are exempt from the disclosure ERE1LATOMRIE T 2 HIEF R K
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as oo ERRET ETARBNEUAE
they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule ZHWERE -

14A.76(1).
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 29 ATFIBEEZHBRIE
FINANCIAL POSITION

OOOOOOOOVOOOOOOVOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOV OOVOO OOV QOOOOOOO OO0

2020 2019
—2-%FF T NF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 FTHET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEERE 58 2
Investments in subsidiaries RBARIMIEE 10 10
68 12
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables E b W FRR 252 219
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A A i IE 89,081 76,895
Cash at bank and in hand RITERAFERS 1,919 32,427
91,252 109,541
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H B /IR 2,029 2,522
Amount due to a subsidiary S — RN E AR KA — 3,074
Lease liabilities HEBSE 60 —
2,089 5,596
Net current assets RBEEZFEE 89,163 103,945
NET ASSETS EEFRE 89,231 103,957
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 24(a)
Share capital [N 3,750 3,750
Reserves 1 85,481 100,207
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 89,231 103,957
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

30

31

32

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
in note 2(c).

30 LLEBEF

AEBER-ZE-NFOA-BRBEER

ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ%x/\%%%%ﬂﬂ%#&.:.#E,ﬁ\llémé

‘?f RBUTTE  HBREHATES - &
Z & R 2B F B M 20 PR -

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 31 EEREREZERZA
PARTIES
At 31 March 2020, the directors consider the immediate RZE_ZEF=ZA=+—H EFRAAK
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be SENEZEGRARKERERIBES 5
Huiri Limited and Ze Hui Limited respectively, both are REAZERBERARIZEEER AR - M
incorporated in the BVI and beneficially owned by Mr. A Tﬂ%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%?ﬂﬁﬁijﬁm;ﬁﬂ
Zheng Jian Jiang. None of these parties produces financial BIRGEERHEE  ZEFEBUBERA
statements available for public use. HARERAOHBERE -
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 32 BZ-_Z_ZTH=A=+—-HL#F
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS BB 28 M M1 R A VB RT -~ #TET
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ZHRBRENTREEE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HETHZEVBHRREY  FESHE
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new NECBEMEEER R—EHERI(R
standard, HKFRS 17, /nsurance contracts, which are not IR SR FNT5 17? B #ZE
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2020 and which BRI ERREEZ ZEF=A=
have not been adopted in these financial statements. ‘f‘—E!JtifgﬁﬂiixﬂHIﬂiﬁ/\\E%%Eﬁﬁ%
These developments include the following which may be WAL - LT RATa RS B AHEE
relevant to the Group. BERT ©
B Effective for
accounting periods
beginning
on or after
RUTEHR 2% MEA
WETHEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business
ERTHREEREIFREFTAN) £ZHEH

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material
AR EAXAESE

FEEGERE IR REF LG ERE

B85E (&
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2020
—E-_FTH—-H—H

1 January 2020
—E-_FTH—-H—H

AEBIEFEZFETRERERAMEZ
BHPE - 25R1L  AEBERBRMAZL
FEATRFAEANTEHEAMBERE
%EXEKE;;EBO
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Five-Year Financial Summary
EFHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and liabilites AEEBERETBREENEENAREE - #&

of the Group for the five financial years is as follows: alkBBEHENT:
RESULTS L

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=1+—HLLFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-Ff Z—T-NF —T-N\F ZT—+tF ZT—K#F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHAT FHET FHT FHET
(note)
(B 72)

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOCOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD

Revenue I 2 339,972 317,568 268,237 102,802 128,964
Profit/(loss) from operations REEERT/(BR) 32,122 (398) (19,077) (27,116) (27,029)
Income tax (expense)/credit ER(ES),/ He (15,953) (6,891) (4,956) (1,687) 1,047
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EB) 13,213 (9,635) (25,517) (28,803) (25,982)
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO0 OOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SOOI OO OOOOOO

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING (¥E  BERIFERES
INTERESTS

At 31 March
R=A=+—H
DOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OO OO OO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
=B-%F _—T-hE —E-N\F —E-tF T-RKRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET THET TET
(note)
(Kt i)
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO0 OOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OO OOOOOOOCOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOD
Total Assets HEE 433,194 427,738 431,650 145,229 173,644
Total Liabilities BERE (304,820) (297,490) (279,840) (32,497) (32,109)
128,374 130,248 151,810 112,732 141,535
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV OOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOVO OOOOOOOOOOOOOO VOOV COOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0
Equity attributable to: ATAT LR :
— Owners of the Company — KRREBA 128,374 130,248 151,810 112,732 141,535
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO QOO0 OOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOEOBOOEOOOOOOOOOOOC OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO SO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the i AEER-_Z—-HFEWNA-BHRBALETEN LY
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative RERBEBM B HREELFE165K - BB T %
information is not restated. See note 2(c). BERATFEY o B E20c)
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